
 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
Kings County Board of Education 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 

4:00 p.m. 

Kings County Office of Education, 1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

On March 12, 2020, as part of a larger effort to address the outbreak of COVID-19, Governor Gavin Newsom issued an 
executive order allowing state and local legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls. Board members may attend 
regular, special, or emergency meetings by telephone (or video conference), and the Governor's executive order waives 
requirements which normally apply to teleconference attendance. Some or all board members may attend this meeting by 
phone. 

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone by clicking on the link below: 
 

https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/87633277554?pwd=Wk1DbUtIaHRMQWs0VWZvaU1WMS9mQT09#success 

 
1. Call to Order ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

2. Pledge of Allegiance ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

3. Recognition of Excellence in Education Awards ~ Rebecca Jensen 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. The 
Board may limit comment to no more than 3 minutes and the total time for public input on an agenda item 
shall not exceed 20 minutes. 

 
ACTION: 
 
4. Approve Minutes of May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting ~ President Gonzales-Gomez (Pgs. 1-5) 

5. Approve Minutes of May 26, 2021, Special Meeting ~ President Gonzales-Gomez (Pgs. 6-7) 

6. Approve Temporary Teaching Certificates ~ Michelle Shannon (Pg. 8) 

7. Approve Resolution A060921 The Education Protection Act ~ Jamie Dial (Pgs. 9-13) 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
1. Facilities Update ~ Jamie Dial 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING: 4:15 p.m. ~ 2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 14-135) 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: 4:15 p.m. ~ 2021-22 Kings County Office of Education Budget ~ Jamie Dial (Pgs. 136-260) 

4. Superintendent’s Report ~ Todd Barlow 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 
Disclaimer: Public health officials recommend against large gatherings and that anyone attending today’s meeting does so at 
their own risk. We may limit the number of attendees, and we will ensure social distancing is practiced. Effective December 5, 
2020, and per CDPH guidelines masks are required to be worn. 
 

Coming Events 
 

Special Board Meeting ~ June 23, 2021 ~ 4:00 p.m. 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



 

Kings Co. District’s Consortium (Substitutes) 
Metz, Jessica – Emergency Career Substitute Permit, renewal 

McClain, Kaylee – Emergency Prospective Teacher Permit 
 

Armona SD 

Knepel, Lynnette – Supplemental Authorization – Introductory English 
 

Central Union SD 
Gately, Brittany – Preliminary Administrative Services Credential 

 
Corcoran Union SD 

Wooden, Rebecca – Clear Multiple Subject Credential/CLAD 
 

Hanford Elementary SD 
Martinez, Elizabeth – Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave: Multiple Subject 

Ramirez, Alicia – Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave: Multiple Subject 
 

Hanford Joint Union High SD 
Marez, Bernardo – Waiver Certificate of Completion of Staff Development 

 

Lemoore High SD 
Rodriguez, Sarah – Clear CLAD Certificate 

 
Reef-Sunset Unified SD 

Gornick, Victoria – Preliminary Administrative Services Credential 
Price, David – Preliminary School Nurse Service Credential 

 
Kings County Office of Education 

Ali, Sophia – Preliminary Education Specialist M/S-2yr extension 
Anderson, Cheyla – Emergency Provisional Internship Permit: M/S; ECE 

Vejar, Ruby – Child Development Site Supervisor Permit 
Wood, Jerrod – Clear Administrative Services Credential; renewal 

 
Private Schools 

Chavez, Elizabeth – Child Development Teacher Permit 

 

8



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE June 9, 2021 

 

TOPIC RESOLUTION A060921- RESOLUTION REGARDING 

THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

 

ISSUE The Board is approving the use of the 2021-2022 Education 

Protection Account funds (Prop 30 & Prop 55). 

 

BACKGROUND Pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution, 

school districts, county offices of education and community 

college districts are required to determine how the moneys 

received from the Education Protection Account are spent in the 

school or schools within its jurisdiction, provided that the 

governing board makes the spending determinations in an open 

session of a public meeting. The resolution meets the 

requirements and refers to the Education Protection Account Fund 

Uses as the planned use of funds. 

 

RESOURCE Jamie Dial, ext 7091 

Resolution A060921 

Education Protection Account Fund Uses  

 

RECOMMENDATION The administration recommends the approval of Resolution 

A060921-Resolution Regarding the Education Protection Account 

 

 

 

 

9



RESOLUTION A060921 

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the voters approved temporary sales and income tax increases with 

Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012; and voters approved Proposition 55 on November 8, 

2016, which allowed the sales tax increase to expire in 2016 while extending the increased 

income tax rates through 2030.  

 

 WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California 

Constitution effective November 7, 2012; and Proposition 55 amended Article XIII, Section 

36 of the California Constitution effective November 8, 2016, and commencing on January 1, 

2018. 

 

 WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the state General 

Fund an Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the 

incremental increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f) of the California 

Constitution;   

 

 WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director of Finance shall estimate the 

total amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental 

increases in tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for 

transfer into the Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year; 

 

 WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State 

Controller shall transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within 

ten days preceding the end of the fiscal year;   

 

 WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously 

appropriated for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools 

and community college districts; 

 

10



 WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used 

to pay any costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state 

government;  

 

 WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, 

or charter school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the 

Education Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction;  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Education shall make the spending determinations with 

respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a public 

meeting of the governing board;  

 

 WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be 

used for salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost;  

 

 WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school 

district and charter school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how 

much money was received from the Education Protection Account and how that money was 

spent;  

 

 WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of 

community college districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools 

shall ascertain and verify whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account 

have been properly disbursed and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the 

California Constitution;  

 

 WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of 

education, school districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit 

requirements of Article XIII, Section 36 may be paid with funding from the Education 

Protection Act and shall not be considered administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, 

Section 36. 

11



 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

 

1. The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall be spent as 

required by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money will 

be spent shall be made in open session of a public meeting of the Kings County Board of 

Education; 

 

2. In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California 

Constitution, the Kings County Board of Education has determined to spend the monies 

received from the Education Protection Act as attached on the report titled “Education 

Protection Account Fund Uses”. 

 

 3. Funds received and spent will be reported and posted on the Kings County 

Office of Education website for public review after the close of the fiscal year. 

 

DATED:  June 9, 2021   ___________________________________ 

Board Member   

 

 

___________________________________ 

Board Member   

 

 

___________________________________ 

Board Member   

 

 

___________________________________ 

Board Member   

 

 

___________________________________ 

Board Member   

 

 

  

 

 

12



Education Protection Account Fund Uses

KINGS COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Planned Uses of Funds

Expenditures through: June 30, 2022

For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description Object Codes Amount

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00

LCFF Sources 8010-8099 1,013,767.00

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00

All Other Financing Sources and Contributions 8900-8999 0.00

Deferred Revenue 9650 0.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE 1,013,767.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

(Objects 1000-7999)

Instruction 1000-1999 0.00

Instruction-Related Services

Instructional Supervision and Administration 2100-2150 0.00

AU of a Multidistrict SELPA 2200 0.00

Instructional Library, Media, and Technology 2420 0.00

Other Instructional Resources 2490-2495 0.00

School Administration 2700 0.00

Pupil Services

Guidance and Counseling Services 3110 0.00

Psychological Services 3120 0.00

Attendance and Social Work Services 3130 0.00

Health Services 3140 0.00

Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 3150 0.00

Pupil Testing Services 3160 0.00

Pupil Transportation 3600 0.00

Food Services 3700 0.00

Other Pupil Services 3900 0.00

Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00

Community Services 5000-5999 0.00

Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00

General Administration 7000-7999 0.00

Plant Services 8000-8999 1,013,767.00

Other Outgo 9000-9999 0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,013,767.00

BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses) 0.00

13



PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 

 

DATE:     June 9, 2021 

 

TOPIC: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP): Public 

Hearing 

 

ISSUE: Regulation requires the Kings County Office of 

Education Local Control Accountability Plan 

(LCAP) be presented at a Public Hearing in order to 

receive public input. 

 

BACKGROUND: As part of the Local Control Funding Formula 

(LCFF), the state’s new school funding model, 

school districts and county offices of education are 

required to develop a Local Control Accountability 

 Plan. This plan shall describe how we intend to 

spend funding generated from our Alternative 

 Education program. This plan has been developed 

based on student, parent, staff, and community 

input. The plan will be brought back for Board 

approval on June 23, 2021.  

 

RESOURCE: Joy Santos  

 Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 

 joy.santos@kingscoe.org 

 (559)589-7068 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that the Kings County Board of 

Education review the LCAP and provide 

comment/input, then move to place this action item 

at the next regularly scheduled meeting.   

 

14

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Kings County Office of Education 

CDS Code: 1610165-1630102 

LEA Contact Information: Name: Joy Santos 
Position:  Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services 
Email: Joy.Santos@kingscoe.org 
Phone: (559)589-7068 

Coming School Year: 2021-22 

Current School Year: 2020-21 

 
*NOTE: The "High Needs Students" referred to in the tables below are Unduplicated Students for LCFF funding purposes. 

Projected General Fund Revenue for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total LCFF Funds $7,419,472 
LCFF Supplemental & Concentration Grants $162,970 
All Other State Funds $6,094,728 
All Local Funds $20,524,689 
All federal funds $5,370,432 
Total Projected Revenue $39,409,321 

 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted General Fund Expenditures $37,816,358 
Total Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP $692,151 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP $190,918 

Expenditures not in the LCAP $37,124,207 
 
Expenditures for High Needs Students in the 2020-21 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the Learning Continuity Plan $385,730 
Actual Expenditures for High Needs Students in Learning Continuity Plan $404,626 

 

Funds for High Needs Students Amount 
2021-22 Difference in Projected Funds and Budgeted Expenditures $27,948 

2020-21 Difference in Budgeted and Actual Expenditures $18,896 

 

Required Prompts(s) Response(s) 

Briefly describe any of the General Fund 
Budget Expenditures for the school year 
not included in the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP).        

Funds were not included, because they are funds generated for county 
operations, specific program services or grants, or other funds not 
designated for county-operated school programs.  The budgeted 
expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the 
following:  special education local plan area, information technology, 
business, human resources, payroll, credentialing, and maintenance and 
operations. 

 
 

15



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Kings County Office of Education 

CDS Code: 1610165-1630102 

School Year: 2021-22 

LEA contact information: 
Joy Santos 
Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services  
Joy.Santos@kingscoe.org 
(559)589-7068 

 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 
 

Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year 

 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Kings County Office of Education expects to receive 

in the coming year from all sources. 
 
The total revenue projected for Kings County Office of Education is $39,409,321, of which $7,419,472 is 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $6,094,728 is other state funds, $20,524,689 is local funds, and 

16



$5,370,432 is federal funds.  Of the $7,419,472 in LCFF Funds, $162,970 is generated based on the 
enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students). 
 
  

17



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Kings County Office of Education plans to spend for 

2021-22. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
Kings County Office of Education plans to spend $37,816,358 for the 2021-22 school year. Of that 
amount, $692,151 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $37,124,207 is not included in the LCAP. 
The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 
 
Funds were not included, because they are funds generated for county operations, specific program 
services or grants, or other funds not designated for county-operated school programs.  The budgeted 
expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following:  special education local 
plan area, information technology, business, human resources, payroll, credentialing, and maintenance 
and operations.        
 
Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021-22 

School Year 
 
In 2021-22, Kings County Office of Education is projecting it will receive $162,970 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Kings County Office of Education 
must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Kings 
County Office of Education plans to spend $190,918 towards meeting this requirement, as described in 
the LCAP. 
 
  
  

18



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21 

 
This chart compares what Kings County Office of Education budgeted last year in the Learning Continuity 
Plan for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students 

with what Kings County Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute 
to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the current year. 

 
In 2020-21, Kings County Office of Education's Learning Continuity Plan budgeted $385,730 for planned 
actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Kings County Office of Education actually 
spent $404,626 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2020-21. 
 
 

19



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 1 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 

 
 

Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 

 

Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 

LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos            

Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services 
joy.santos@kingscoe.org            
(559)589-7068 

 
The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its goals, measurable outcomes and actions and services from the 
2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 

20

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AnnualUpdate


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 2 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal 1 
Focus on students and maintain high expectations for learning          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
2A) Implementation of State Standards & ELD: Quarterly District 
Benchmark ELA & Math Lets Go Learn        
19-20 
ELA: 73% growth 
Math: Pre-Algebra: 80% 
Foundational: 80% growth 
        
Baseline 
ELA: 70% growth Math: Pre-Algebra: 70% growth Foundational: 
80% growth (2016-17)        

2A) Implementation of State Standards & ELD: Quarterly District 
Benchmark ELA & Math Lets Go Learn 
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM) 
Students served 30 days or more made growth: 
ELA 56% Gains 
Pre-Algebra 64% Gains 
Foundational Math 87% Gains 
 
Although JCM did not make the project gains for ELA and Pre-
Algebra, they did make gains in Foundational Math.  Pre-Algebra 
is a required initial test for all new students. 
 

Metric/Indicator 
4A) Statewide Assessments: (ELA & Math CAASPP Results)        
19-20 
ELA: 50% Met/Nearly Met Math: 15% Met/Nearly Met        
Baseline 
ELA: 51% Met/Nearly Met Math: 6% Nearly Met (2016)        

4A) Statewide Assessments: (ELA & Math CAASPP Results): 
 
J.C. Montgomery and Kings County Office of Education: 
ELA: In order to protect student privacy, data is suppressed 
because 10 or fewer students tested 
Math: In order to protect student privacy, data is suppressed 
because 10 or fewer students tested 
 

21

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AMOs


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 3 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School: 
ELA: 10% Met/Nearly Met; Yellow, 55.7 points below the standard, 
Increased 3 Points 
Math: 5.26% Met/Nearly Met; Orange, 85.3 points below the 
standard, Declined 4.1 Points 
 
 

Metric/Indicator 
2B & 4D) EL proficiency growth: CELDT State Language 
Assessment Results        
19-20 
65% progress        
Baseline 
50% students progressed (2015-16 & 2016-17)        

2B & 4D) EL proficiency growth: CELDT State Language 
Assessment has been replaced with ELPAC Assessment.  
Dataquest 2018-2019 results (most recent). 
 
J.C. Montgomery: 
In order to protect student privacy, data is suppressed because 10 
or fewer students tested 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School: 
0% of Students earned a level 4- Well Developed 
1.96% of Students earned a level 3- Moderately Developed 
3.92% of Students earned a level 2- Somewhat Developed 
94.12% of Students earned a level 1- Minimally Developed 
 
Kings County Office of Education: 
0% of Students earned a level 4- Well Developed 
5.17% of Students earned a level 3- Moderately Developed 
10.34% of Students earned a level 2- Somewhat Developed 
84.48% of Students earned a level 1- Minimally Developed 
 

Metric/Indicator 
4E) EL Reclassification Rate: % students reclassified by district in 
current year        
19-20 
15.0%        
Baseline 
6.7% (2015-16)        

4E) EL Reclassification Rate: % of students reclassified by the 
district in the current year according to 2018-2019 DataQuest 
results. 
 
J.C. Montgomery: 
Total Student Enrollment- 34 
English Learners- 11 students or 32.4% 
Fluent English Proficient Students- 3 students or 8.8% 
Students Redesignated FEP- 0 students or 0% 

22



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 4 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 
Please note, many of our students exit out of our program prior to 
getting assessment results or meeting criteria for reclassification 
and are subsequently reclassified by local districts. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School: 
Total Student Enrollment- 323 
English Learners- 53 students or 16.4% 
Fluent English Proficient Students- 52 students or 16.1% 
Students Redesignated FEP- 4 students or 7.0% 
 
Kings County Office of Education: 
Total Student Enrollment- 357 
English Learners- 64 students or 17.9% 
Fluent English Proficient Students- 55 students or 15.4% 
Students Redesignated FEP- 4 students or 5.7% 
 
 

Metric/Indicator 
4G) EAP Participation: % students participating in the EAP 
assessment        
19-20 
95% District 98% JCM        
Baseline 
74% (2016)        

4G) EAP Participation: % of students participating in the EAP 
assessment: 
 
Kings County Office of Education:  0% of students participating in 
the EAP assessment 
 
J.C. Montgomery: In order to protect student privacy, data is 
suppressed because 10 or fewer students tested. 
 

Metric/Indicator 
4C) A-G, 4F) AP        
19-20 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. This metric does not apply to us        
Baseline 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. This metric does not apply to us        

4C) A-G, 4F) AP 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which is highly transient. 
This metric does not apply to us. 
 

23



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 5 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
7A) Broad Course of Study: Access: Master Course List        
19-20 
100% Student Course Access        
Baseline 
100% Student Course Access        

7A) Broad Course of Study: Access: Master Course List 
100% students have access to required courses per our master 
schedule. 
 

Metric/Indicator 
7A        
19-20 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. A portion of this metric does not apply to us: Foreign 
Language, Applied Arts, and Career Technical Education        
Baseline 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. A portion of this metric does not apply to us: Foreign 
Language, Applied Arts, and Career Technical Education        

Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which is highly transient. 
A portion of this metric does not apply to us: Foreign Language, 
Applied Arts, and Career Technical Education. 

Metric/Indicator 
7B) Programs & Services: Unduplicated Pupils: Master Course 
List        
19-20 
100% Unduplicated Pupils Access to Programs & Services        
Baseline 
100% Unduplicated Pupils Access to Programs & Services        

7B) Programs & Services: Unduplicated Pupils: Master Course 
List 100% of our court students are considered unduplicated, and 
all have access to required courses per our master schedule. 

Metric/Indicator 
7C) Programs & Services: Individuals with Exceptional Needs: % 
Students with IEP        
19-20 
100% Individuals with Exceptional Needs have an IEP that 
includes access to services        
Baseline 
100% Individuals with Exceptional Needs Access to Programs & 
Services        

7C) Programs & Services: Individuals with Exceptional Needs: 
100% Students that have an IEP that includes access to services. 

24



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 6 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
8) Pupil Outcomes: District Benchmark Quarterly District 
Benchmark ELA & Math Lets Go Learn        
19-20 
ELA: 73% growth 
Math: Pre-Algebra: 80% Foundational: 80% growth 
        
Baseline 
ELA: 70% growth  Math: Pre-Algebra: 70% growth Foundational: 
80% growth (2016-17)        

8) Pupil Outcomes: District Benchmark Quarterly District 
Benchmark ELA & Math Lets Go Learn 
Students served 30 days or more made growth: 
ELA 56% Gains 
Foundational Math 87% Gains 
Pre-Algebra 64% Gains 
 

Metric/Indicator 
8) Pupil Outcomes: Foreign Language, Applied Arts, Career 
Technical Education        
19-20 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. A portion of this metric does not apply to us: Foreign 
Language, Applied Arts, and Career Technical Education        
Baseline 
Court schools serve incarcerated youth, which are highly 
transient. A portion of this metric does not apply to us: Foreign 
Language, Applied Arts, and Career Technical Education        

8) Pupil Outcomes: In regards to Foreign Language, Applied Arts, 
Career Technical Education, court schools serve incarcerated 
youth, which is highly transient so a portion of this metric does not 
apply to us. 

 
Actions / Services 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Western Association of Schools & Colleges (WASC) Fees: Continue to 
implement recommendations regarding Vision/Mission, ELD and Math. 
Annual membership fee. 

WASC Renewal Application Fee 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,020  

WASC Renewal Application Fee 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,070 

     Additional visit 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $950 

25

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AUActions


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 7 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $100  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $198 

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) to transform planning & 
collaboration around student needs driven by data KCOE Professional 
Development Consultant 8 Half Days 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Title I N&D $4,000  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Title I N&D $4,000 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $393  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $393 

5% Data and Assessment Consultant to collect, analyze, and make 
data visual for district due to eliminating Illuminate Contract. Provide 
teachers, administration, and support staff with data for PLCs and 
parent committees. Assist with the implementation of additional 
formative and summative assessments. 

Other Unrestricted Funds 1000-
3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits Other $6,258  

Other Unrestricted Funds 1000-
3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits Other $6,250 

Other Unrestricted Funds Indirect 
Costs 7000-7439: Other Outgo 
Other $613  

Other Unrestricted Funds Indirect 
Costs 7000-7439: Other Outgo 
Other $614 

Purchase additional materials aligned to California State Standards for 
continued progress monitoring and growth of reading Lexile levels and 
intervention needs. LightSail & Classroom Management Software. 

LightSail License 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $643  

LightSail License 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $2,490 

Additional Independent Reading 
Books 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies LCFF $1,000  

Additional Independent Reading 
Books 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies LCFF $0 

Classroom Management Software 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,645  

Classroom Management Software 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $327  

Indirect Costs: Lightsail, ERS, 
CBL, EBLI 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $586 

     ERS Contract 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $980 

     Character-Based Learning (CBL) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 

26



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 8 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$500 

     EBLI: Evidence-Based Literacy 
Instruction 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $2,000 

25% of a Teacher to support English Learners. New student materials 
and supplies. 

Item Moved to Action 11 Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0  

Item Moved to Action 11 Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $4,065  

Indirect Costs: ELD teacher, 
Equipment Replacement & iLit 
7000-7439: Other Outgo LCFF 
$3,402 

25% ELD Teacher 1000-3999 
Certificated Salaries & Benefits 
LCFF $33,314  

25% ELD Teacher & 8 time-sheet 
days 1000-3999 Certificated 
Salaries & Benefits LCFF $33,696 

Item Moved to Action 11 Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0  

Item Moved to Action 11 Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0 

25% ELD Teacher Equipment 
Cost 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $125  

25% ELD Teacher Equipment 
Cost 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $125 

ELD Curriculum Program 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$10,000  

ELD Curriculum Program- iLit EL 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$820 

Physical Education Program Expansion Supplies & Teacher 
Professional Development to support the development of district 
progress monitoring benchmarks 

PE Program Expansion Supplies 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $2,000  

PE Program Expansion Supplies 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $1,023 

571065 Inter Program Transfer 
Direct Cost Professional 
Development 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs LCFF 
$2,000  

571065 Inter Program Transfer 
Direct Cost Professional 
Development 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs LCFF 
$0 

27



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 9 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $392  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $100 

Provide professional development in California State Standards & 21st 
Century learning technology KCOE Professional Development 
Consultant Coaching 18 Days Math & Science 
20% Math Intervention Teacher 
 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $18,000  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $9,000 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $5,648  

Indirect Costs: MOU, Math 
Teacher and Teacher Equipment 
7000-7439: Other Outgo LCFF 
$3,996 

20% Math Intervention Teacher 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits LCFF $29,227  

20% Math Intervention Teacher 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits LCFF $31,584 

20% Teacher Equipment 
Replacement 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs LCFF 
$100  

20% Teacher Equipment 
Replacement 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs LCFF 
$100 

LightSpeed Online Filter Student 
Support 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $6,000  

LightSpeed Online Filter Student 
Support 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $0 

Math Intervention (Action Code 
00) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies LCFF $6,000  

Math Program & Intervention 
Professional Development 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$2,500 

Student Information System (SIS): Aeries to monitor student 
demographic data, attendance, grades, progress towards graduation, & 
behavior. (Eagle Software) 

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Other 
$5,200  

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Other 
$2,600 

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Other $510  

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
Indirect Costs: Aeries PD 7000-
7439: Other Outgo Other $100 

28



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 10 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

     Aeries as the Student Information 
System (SIS) Professional 
Development 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Other $1,022 

System of tiered academic interventions & supports that include initial 
and post benchmark assessments in ELA and Math. Math & ELA 
Intervention Let's Go Learn 

Let's Go Learn Intervention 
Program 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $11,250  

Let's Go Learn Intervention 
Program 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $3,940 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $1,103  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $387 

25% of a Teacher to support intensive intervention 25% Intervention Teacher 1000-
3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits LCFF $33,314  

25% Intervention Teacher & 8 
time-sheet days 1000-3999 
Certificated Salaries & Benefits 
LCFF $33,696 

25% Intervention Teacher 
Equipment Costs 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $125  

25% Intervention Teacher 
Equipment Cost 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $125 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $3,085  

Indirect Costs: Intervention 
teacher & Teacher Equipment 
7000-7439: Other Outgo LCFF 
$3,321 

English Language Development Professional Learning to support Long 
Term English Learners instructional planning support, modeling and 
coaching. Consultant Contract.  6 Days for Designated ELD, CBL, and 
ERWC. 12 days for Integrated ELD with content teachers. 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services Designated ELD PD 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title I N&D $6,000  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services Designated ELD PD 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title I N&D $6,000 

Inter Program Direct Cost of 
Consultant Contract Indirect Cost 
Rate 5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs Title I N&D $1,768  

Inter Program Direct Cost of 
Consultant Contract Indirect Cost 
Rate 5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs Title I N&D $1,571 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services Integrated ELD PD 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Services Integrated ELD PD 

29



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 11 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title I N&D $12,000  

5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title I N&D $10,000 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $1,937  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $0 

Intern Support for Special Education RSP Teacher at JCM.  Includes 3 
days of onsite coaching and cohort professional learning. Induction 
Costs for Shelly Baird 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Registration 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title II $500  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Registration 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title II $0 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Shelly Baird 
Induction 5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs Title II $8,238.59  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Shelly Baird 
Induction 5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs Title II $10,400 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title II $856  

Indirect Costs: Shelly Baird 
Induction 7000-7439: Other Outgo 
Title II $1,021 

Teacher Professional Development Positive Discipline in the 
Classroom: 4 day series (Topics 1-4) 

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Registration 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title II $300  

Direct Cost Inter-Program 
Transfer 571065 Registration 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct 
Costs Title II $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title II $29  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title II $0 

Co-Op Contract for supporting federal programs Direct Cost Inter Program 
Transfer Co-Op Agreement 5700-
5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs 
Title I N&D $18,461.40  

Direct Cost Inter Program 
Transfer Co-Op Agreement 5700-
5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs 
Title I N&D $18,461 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $1,809  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $1,813 

 

30



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 12 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Following is a description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, 
families, teachers, and staff. This is achieved by showing areas of increase and decrease in an effort to adjust planned amounts to 
support changes caused by COVID and their effects on student needs. 

• Action 1: We planned to spend $1,120, and we actually spent $2,218. This is a difference of $1,098. The increase in this 
action was due to an additional WASC visit. The WASC accreditation process is important as it serves as the foundation for 
quality education. 

• Action 4: Reading and Literacy are a basic necessity at J.C. Montgomery. As such we had planned to spend $3,615 to 
support associated initiatives but increased this amount by $2,941 for a total of $6,556. This change partially came about due 
to the fact that we required more Lightsail licenses than we originally planned for as they were not reusable as we had initially 
thought. Also although we were able to pass on the Classroom Management Software costs to the IT department, we 
increased our reading support by purchasing ERS, CBL, and EBLI subscriptions. 

• Action 5: In an effort to support ELD, 25% of a Teacher to support English Learners including new student materials and 
supplies we were able to decrease the student material costs by $9,180. This was largely due to a decrease in English 
learners who came through the program and the use of current materials instead of new materials. The excess funds were 
moved to cover Actions 1 and 4. 

• Action 6: Overall, there were a $3,269 decrease in Physical Education Program Expansion Supplies & Professional 
development expenses. This was largely due to the fact that our PE teacher was unable to attend conferences in person and 
instead received internal PD support. 

• Action 7: Overall, there was a $17,795 decrease in this action. This decrease was associated with the following components: 
1) Less MOU support days but more internal support to address and increase of online/virtual support. 2)The lightspeed filter 
costs were absorbed by the IT department, the Math intervention materials were changed to Mathia PD (which resulted in 
decreased costs) to address current student needs. 

• Action 8: We had planned for $5,200, however, we decreased costs by $1,478. This was largely due to a decrease in Aeries 
software costs and unanticipated costs for training. 

• Action 9: We had planned for $12,353 to support this action, however, the amount was decreased by $8,026. This was 
largely due to the fact that we were able to re-use student licenses once students were released as well as a decrease in 
new in-takes due to COVID-19. 

• Action 11: We had a decrease of about $2,000 as a portion of these MOU support days were to assist with in-class 
assistance that was not completed due to COVID-19 distancing. Instead, virtual support was provided. 

• Action 12: This was increased by about $1,826 due largely to an increase in the amount of Kings County Special 
Education/Shelly Baird School induction support provided. Action 11 overage funds were moved to this action to cover the 
increase. 

• Action 13: Funds planned were not spent on Positive Discipline training as it was provided at no cost to internal participants. 

31

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 13 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 

 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The following were overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services: 
Successes: 

 Action 2, 3, 10, and 14: We planned and spent approximately the same amount for these actions/services to address 
associated metrics as determined by students, families, and staff. 

 Reading and Literacy actions were increased to support the needs of students. Students who were incarcerated longer than 
30 days showed a 56% gain in ELA. 

 Although costs for Math intervention material were decreased we saw an 87% gain in Foundational Math skills. 
 For this goal, we were largely able to reuse student licenses for programs. This decreased costs in many areas and provided 

the same level of student support. 
Challenges: 

 Many in-person coaching and supporting opportunities were changed to virtual/online support. While helpful, this does not 
allow for the same level of student/teacher support. We look forward to returning to in-person support as COVID-19 health 
guidelines allow. 

Overall the goal and actions will need to be realigned and revised to meet the needs of the new 3-year plan in light of pandemic-
related adjustments and considerations. Some actions that will not be a part of the 3-year plan are 1) Professional Learning 
Communities (PLCs), 2) 5% Data and Assessment Consultant, 3) Physical Education Program Expansion Supplies, 4) Provide 
professional development in California State Standards, 5) Student Information System (SIS), 6) 25% of a Teacher to support 
intensive intervention, 7) Intern Support and 8) Teacher Professional Development Positive Discipline. Actions items including 
Curriculum and staff support, as well as the Co-Op Contract, were instrumental in providing support for unduplicated pupils including 
English Learners, low-income and Foster Youth was effective in meeting the individual needs of students, however, as mentioned, 
these will be part of the realigned and revised actions in our new 3-year plan.  
 
 

32



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 14 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal 2 
Provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social emotional and mental health issues of our 
students          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1A) Teacher Assignment: % Teachers appropriately assigned        
19-20 
100% Appropriately Assigned        
Baseline 
100% Appropriately Assigned (2015-16)        

100% Appropriately Assigned 

Metric/Indicator 
1A) Teacher Credentialing: % Teachers fully credentialed        
19-20 
100% Fully Credentialed        
Baseline 
100% Fully Credentialed (2015-16)        

100% Fully Credentialed 

Metric/Indicator 
1B) Sufficient Instructional Materials: % students with sufficient 
instructional materials        
19-20 
100% Sufficient Access Standards Aligned Materials        
Baseline 
100% Sufficient Access Standards Aligned Materials (8/2016)        

100% Sufficient Access Standards Aligned Materials 

33

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AMOs


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 15 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1C) School Facilities in Good Repair: Rating on Facilities 
Inspected Tool (FIT)        
19-20 
Rating of Good or Excellent        
Baseline 
Rating of Good (2015-16)        

1C) School Facilities in Good Repair: Rating on Facilities 
Inspected Tool (FIT) 
Rating of Good or Exemplary 
 

Metric/Indicator 
5A) School Attendance Rates: Attendance %        
19-20 
98%        
Baseline 
94.08% (2016-17)        

5A) School Attendance Rates: 
J.C Montgomery: Monthly Attendance Summary Total report from 
Aeries showed Attendance was 96.5%. 
 

Metric/Indicator 
5B) Chronic Absenteeism Rates: % Chronically Absent        
19-20 
30% District 2% JCM        
Baseline 
30.9% (2016-17)        

J.C Montgomery -  (CA Dashboard for the 2019-20 School Year) 
All Students: Less than 11 students - data not displayed due to 
privacy. 
Low-income: Less than 11 students - data not displayed due to 
privacy. 
Students with Disabilities: Less than 11 students - data not 
displayed due to privacy. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School - 
All Students: Red, 52.4% Chronically absent, increase by 3.4%, 
Very High 
Low-income: Red, 51.6% Chronically absent, increase by 1.3%, 
Very High 
Students with Disabilities: Red, 52.4% Chronically absent, 
increase by 3.6%, Very High 
 
Kings County Office of Education - 
All Students: Red, 51.2% Chronically absent, increased by 4.1%, 
Very High 
Low-income: Red, 50% Chronically absent, increased by 2.4%, 
Very High 

34



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 16 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 
Students with Disabilities: Red, 51.6% Chronically absent, 
increased by 3.4%, Very High 
 

Metric/Indicator 
5D) High School Drop Out : Number and % of students reported 
as dropping out (# drops/total # students served in school year)        
19-20 
9/Total Served = 7%        
Baseline 
26/148 = 17.57% (2015-16)        

J.C Montgomery: 9/17 Total Served = 52.94% 

Metric/Indicator 
5E) High School Graduation Rate: Number and % students 
reported as graduating (Number graduates/# HS Seniors 
reported on CBEDS)        
19-20 
JCM: 12/ # Seniors on CBEDS = 70% 
District 80% 
        
Baseline 
4/11 = 36.36% (2015-16)        

J.C Montgomery: 5/17 Seniors on CBEDS = 29.41% 
District: 6/35 Seniors on CBEDS = 17.14% 
 

Metric/Indicator 
5C) Middle School Drop-out        
19-20 
This metric does not apply to JC Montgomery, as it is a court 
school serving incarcerated youth in high school.        
Baseline 
This metric does not apply to JC Montgomery, as it is a court 
school serving incarcerated youth in high school.        

This metric does not apply to J.C Montgomery, as it is a court 
school serving incarcerated youth in high school. 

Metric/Indicator 
6B) Expulsion Rates        
19-20 

6B) Expulsion Rates: DataQuest 2018-2019 
1) J.C Montgomery - 
Enrollment: 159 
Total Expulsions: 0 

35



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 17 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

This metric does not apply to JC Montgomery, as it is a court 
school serving incarcerated youth in high school.        
Baseline 
This metric does not apply to JC Montgomery, as it is a court 
school serving incarcerated youth in high school.        

Expulsion Rate: 0% 
 
2) Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School - 
Enrollment: 360 
Total Expulsions: 0 
Expulsion Rate: 0% 
 
3) Kings County Office of Education - 
Enrollment: 515 
Total Expulsions: 0 
Expulsion Rate: 0% 
 

Metric/Indicator 
6A) Suspension Rates: % Suspended        
19-20 
District: 7% Yellow 
JCM: 7% Yellow 
        
Baseline 
0% (2015-16)        

6A) Suspension Rates: % Suspended (CA Dashboard 2019) 
 
J.C Montgomery - 
Enrollment: 159 
All Students: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, increased 
0.3%, Very High 
Hispanic: Orange, 9.8% suspended at least once, increased 0.8%, 
High 
Low Income: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, increased 
0.3%, Very High 
English Learner: Yellow, 9.4% suspended at least once, increased 
2.4%, High 
Students with Disabilities: Yellow, 9.4% suspended at least once, 
declined 6.8%, High 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School - 
Enrollment: 360 
All Students: Red, 8.9% suspended at least once, maintained 
0.2%, Very High 
Hispanic: Orange, 6.1% suspended at least once, maintained -
0.1%, High 
Low Income: Red, 8.8% suspended at least once, declined 2.7%, 
Very High 

36



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 18 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 
English Learner: Blue, 0% suspended at least once, maintained 
0%, Very Low 
Students with Disabilities: Red, 8.9% suspended at least once, 
maintained 0.1%, Very High 
 
Kings County Office of Education - 
Enrollment: 515 
All Students: Red, 9.3% suspended at least once, maintained 
0.2%, Very High 
Hispanic: Orange, 7.4% suspended at least once, maintained 
0.2%, Very High 
Low Income: Orange, 9.6% suspended at least once, declined 
1.3%, Very High 
English Learner: Green, 3.4% suspended at least once, declined 
1.2%, Low 
Students with Disabilities: Orange, 9% suspended at least once, 
declined 0.4%, Very High 
 

Metric/Indicator 
6C) Other Local Measures: Surveys of Pupils on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness        
19-20 
75% Feel Connected 85% Feel Safe        
Baseline 
Connectedness 75% felt they had someone to talk to Safety 80% 
felt quite/somewhat safe (2016-17)        

6C) Other Local Measures: Surveys of Pupils on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness: 
47.4% Feel Connected 
68.5% Feel Safe 
 

Metric/Indicator 
6C) Other Local Measures- Surveys of Parents on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness 
 
        
19-20 
90% Feel Connected 90% Feel School Safe        
Baseline 

6C) Other Local Measures- Surveys of Parents on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness: 
93.8% Feel Connected 
93.8% Feel Safe 
 

37



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 19 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Connectedness 43% felt connected to school Safety 100% felt 
school quite/somewhat safe        
Metric/Indicator 
6C) Other Local Measures- Surveys of Staff on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness        
19-20 
100% Feel Connected via collaboration 100% Feel School 
Safe 
        
Baseline 
Connectedness 100% collaborate quite often Safety 86% felt 
school safe        

6C) Other Local Measures- Surveys of Staff on the sense of safety 
and school connectedness: 
100% Feel Connected via collaboration 
100% Feel School Safe 
 

 
Actions / Services 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Regular recognition of students for character and academic growth 
Student Incentives Program 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $700  

Student Recognition Incentives 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $1,192 

Dues & Memberships 
Discontinued Not Applicable Not 
Applicable $0  

Dues & Memberships 
Discontinued Not Applicable Not 
Applicable $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $48  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $117 

APEX Learning Program to combine instruction and assessment for 
students needing to gain credits toward high school graduation and 
access A-G rigorous courses. 

Apex Licenses (30) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $4,500  

Apex Licenses (35) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $5,250 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $441  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $516 

For Low Income Pupils: Transition Services 70%, Transition Specialist  
70% Computer Replacement, Mileage for the Transition Specialist to 
attend Fresno State Counselor Financial Aide Training & Truancy 

70% Transition Specialist 1000-
3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits Title I N&D 108,766  

70% Transition Specialist 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Title I N&D $114,073 

38

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AUActions


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 20 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Summit, Parent Positive Discipline Training Professional Development, 
Truancy Summit Registration Indirect Costs Title 7000-7439: 

Other Outgo Title I N&D $9,511  
Indirect Costs Title: Transition 
Specialist, Computer 
Replacement, Parent Positive 
Training, & Copies 7000-7439: 
Other Outgo Title I N&D $11,418 

Direct Costs 571030 Inter 
Program Transfer 60% Computer 
Replacement 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs Title I 
N&D $350  

Direct Costs 571030 Inter 
Program Transfer 70% Computer 
Replacement 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs Title I 
N&D $350 

Travel General Mileage 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $500  

Travel General Mileage 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $0 

Parent Positive Discipline Training 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $400  

Parent Positive Discipline Training 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $25 

Direct Costs 571065 Inter 
Program Transfer Truancy 
Summit Registration 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs Title I 
N&D $350  

Direct Costs 571065 Inter 
Program Transfer Truancy 
Summit Registration 5700-5799: 
Transfers Of Direct Costs Title I 
N&D $0 

Copy Costs for Transition 
Specialist 560005 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Title I N&D $2,200  

Copy Costs for Transition 
Specialist 560005 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Title I N&D $1,134 

Intensive Intervention Program iLit online student licenses to support 
students in ELA 

iLit Online License Intensive 
Intervention 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $6,600  

iLit 20 Online License Intensive 
Intervention 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $687 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $647  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $67 

 

39



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 21 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Following is a description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, 
families, teachers, and staff. This is achieved by showing areas of increase and decrease in an effort to adjust planned amounts to 
support changes caused by COVID and their effects on student needs. 

 Action 1: The $561 increase was due largely to the purchase of more Student Recognition Incentives. These incentives are 
part of a positive discipline initiative to increase student participation and decrease student behavior incidents. 

 Action 2: The $825 increase was due to the purchase of 5 additional APEX licenses. 
 Action 3: The $4,923 decrease was due largely to a decrease in 1) copy usage as we sent more digital/phone 

correspondence in lieu of paper due to COVID-19, 2) no mileage was incurred as most meetings were held virtually, 3) 
Truancy Summit fees were not charged to internal attendees 4) Parent Positive training was not in-person, thus incurred 
fewer expenses and 5) these decreases resulted in associated indirect costs being less. Funds not used for this action were 
moved to cover Actions 1 & 2. 

 Action 4: There was a decrease of $6,493 due to the ability to reuse iLit licenses as well as a large decrease in the number of 
students the intensive intervention would target. Otherwise, all students were served. 

 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The following were overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services: 
Successes: 

 All actions to support student growth were accomplished in spite of effects from the COVID-19 health restrictions. 
 The transitional specialist position was largely used to service the needs of students and families as they entered and left the 

facility. 
 Student Recognition Incentives were instrumental in reducing outbursts and minor behavior issues thus fostering a safe and 

connected atmosphere for students, families, and staff. 
 100% Appropriately Assigned & 100% Fully Credentialed Teachers. 
 100% Sufficient Access Standards Aligned Materials. 

Challenges: 
 Meetings were not held in person but instead held virtually to support the COVID-19 health restrictions. 
 Suspension data displayed was from the 2019 Dashboard and revealed All Students: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, 

increased 0.3%, Very High. Due to this 2018 data, we worked diligently to positively motivate students to decrease 
suspendable behaviors. 

 Overall the goal and actions will need to be realigned and revised to meet the needs of the new 3-year plan in light of the 
pandemic-related adjustments and considerations. Some actions that will not be a part of the 3-year plan are 1) Parent 
Positive Discipline Training 2) the purchase of Apex and 3) the continued use of iLit curriculum. Regular recognition of 

40

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 22 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

students for character and academic growth Student Incentives Program and the Transition Specialist will be continued as 
they were instrumental in providing support for unduplicated pupils including English Learners, low-income and Foster Youth 
were effective in meeting the individual needs of students, however, as mentioned, these will be part of the realigned and 
revised actions in our new 3-year plan. 

 
 

41



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 23 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal 3 
Improve parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and success of students          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
3A) District Efforts to seek Parent Input (District & Site): # ELAC 
& SSC Meetings held        
19-20 
4 English Learner Advisory Committee Meetings 4 School Site 
Council Meetings        
Baseline 
4 English Learner Advisory Committee Meetings 4 School Site 
Council Meetings (2016-17)        

3A) District Efforts to seek Parent Input (District & Site): # ELAC & 
SSC Meetings held: 
4 English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) Meetings: 
2/27/2020, 3/25/2020, 4/29/2020. 6/24/2020 
4 School Site Council (SSC) Meetings:  2/27/2020, 3/25/2020, 
4/29/2020. 6/24/2020 
 

Metric/Indicator 
3A) District Efforts to seek Parent Input (District & Site): 
Parent/Guardian Survey Participation Rate        
19-20 
25%        
Baseline 
16% (2016-17)        

3A) District Efforts to seek Parent Input (District & Site): 
Parent/Guardian Survey Participation Rate: 
44.4% Parent/Guardian Survey Participation Rate on 2020 Spring 
LCAP Survey 
 

Metric/Indicator 
3B) Promotion of Parent/Guardian Participation  Unduplicated 
Pupils: # Monthly Parent Meetings held with parents of 
unduplicated pupils        
19-20 
12 Parent Coffee Hours        

3B) Promotion of Parent/Guardian Participation Unduplicated 
Pupils: # Monthly Parent Meetings held with parents of 
unduplicated pupils 
16 Parent Coffee Hours were scheduled for 2019-2020 
August-January: 1.5 hours each month 
February-June: 1-hour sessions 

42

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AMOs


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 24 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
10 Parent Coffee Hours (2016- 17)        

 

Metric/Indicator 
3B) Parent Survey Involved in Decision Making Unduplicated 
Pupils: Parents of unduplicated pupils survey response to parent 
involvement question        
19-20 
50% not at all involved 50% quite/somewhat involved        
Baseline 
71% not at all involved 29% quite/somewhat involved (2016-17)        

3B) Parent Involvement Feedback %: 
Parent Survey Question: How would you rate the communication 
from the school to the parents or guardians? 
50% Very Effective 
43.8% Somewhat Effective 
 

Metric/Indicator 
3C) Promotion of Parent/Guardian Participation 
Individuals with Exceptional Needs: % of Parent/Guardian 
Participation in IEPs 
        
19-20 
100% IEP Parent/Guardian Participation        
Baseline 
100% IEP Parent/Guardian Participation (2016-17)        

3C) 100% IEP Parent/Guardian Participation 

 
Actions / Services 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Translation: This action will be combined into other staff duties This action will be combined into 
other staff duties Not Applicable 
Not Applicable $0  

This action was combined into 
other staff duties Not Applicable 
Not Applicable $0 

Action combined into Action 3.3: Parent Committees & Education Materials & Supplies (Cost 
included in Action 3.3) Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0  

Materials & Supplies (Cost 
included in Action 3.3) Not 
Applicable Not Applicable $0 

Provide opportunities for parents to be engaged in school decision-
making & programs, including meaningful feedback on student 
progress: School Site Council (SSC), English Learner Advisory 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $1,500  

Printing materials and supplies for 
Parent Engagement 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies LCFF $265 

43

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AUActions


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 25 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Committee (ELAC) meetings; Student Study Team Meetings; Staff 
Home Visits; Individual Learning Plan (ILP) Plan Meetings, Parent 
Coffee Hours, Parent Visiting Days, Administrative & Clerical Support 
Parent Committees & Education 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $6,382  

Indirect Costs: Supplies for Parent 
Engagement, Administrator 
w/equipment replacement and 
Clerical w/equipment replacement 
7000-7439: Other Outgo LCFF 
$5,781 

15% Administrator 1000-3999 
Certificated Salaries & Benefits 
LCFF $23,307  

15% Administrator 1000-3999 
Certificated Salaries & Benefits 
LCFF $24,444 

     15% Site Principal Equipment 
Replacement 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies LCFF $75 

50% Clerical 2000-3999 Classified 
Salaries & Benefits LCFF $32,534  

50% Clerical 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
LCFF $33,840 

     50% Site Secretary Equipment 
Replacement 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies LCFF $250 

PIQE Contract Parent Institute for Quality Education PIQE Contract 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $6,000  

PIQE Contract 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title I 
N&D $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $588  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Title I N&D $0 

 
Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Following is a description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, 
families, teachers, and staff. This is achieved by showing areas of increase and decrease in an effort to adjust planned amounts to 
support changes caused by the pandemic and their effects on student needs. 

 Action 1: This action was combined with other staff duties. All translations were provided by site staff, rather than Bilingual 
Secretary Staff. 

44

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 26 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Action 2: Materials & Supplies (Cost included in Action 3.3). All materials and supplies for parent education and engagement 
were combined with action 3.3 and completed as needed. 

 Action 3: Supplies were overbudgeted due to the lack of in-person meetings caused by COVID-19. 15% Principal 
(Administrator) & 50% Clerical was achieved at a slightly higher cost due to employee salary increase. Principal & Secretary 
equipment replacement costs were added to allow for specific position equipment replacement and allowed as an offset of 
parent engagement supplies as more meetings took place virtually and by phone. 

 Action 4: The Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) Contract was not incurred as more timely support was required to 
assist Parents and Students affected by the pandemic. This support was provided by onsite staff in lieu of contracting through 
PIQE. 

 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The following were overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services: 
Successes: 

 All actions to support Parent Education & Engagement were accomplished in spite of effects from the COVID-19 health 
restrictions. 

 Support and outreach were available for parents virtually or by phone. 
 100% IEP Parent/Guardian participation. 
 Parent Survey: How would you rate the communication from the school to the parents or guardians? 94% said Very or 

Somewhat Effective. 
Challenges: 

 Meetings were not held in person but instead held virtually to support the COVID-19 health restrictions. 
 PIQE pre-designed modules were not held due to the relevance of the instruction in light of the pandemic. 

Overall the goal and actions will need to be realigned and revised to meet the needs of the new 3-year plan in light of the COVID-19 
related adjustments and considerations. Some actions that will not be a part of the 3-year plan are translations (this has been 
absorbed into the current staff positions) and the PIQE contract (we will be providing more targeted parent education classes). The 
administrator and secretarial clerk were instrumental in providing support for unduplicated pupils including English Learners, low-
income and Foster Youth were effective in meeting the individual needs of students, however, as mentioned, these will be part of the 
realigned and revised actions in our new 3-year plan.  
 
 

45



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 27 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Goal 4 
Coordinate high quality educational programs and services for Kings County Foster & Expelled youth          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
10A) Coordination of Foster Youth Services Work with County 
Welfare Agency to Minimize Changes in School Placement LI 7: 
Number of Foster Student School Placement Changes in current 
year        
19-20 
30% Placement Changes        
Baseline 
124/290 = 43% Placement Changes (2016-17)        

10A) 70/248 foster students changed school placment, which is 
28%. We exceeded our expected outcome by 2% and have 
supported districts, schools and community partners in lessening 
the changes in our county by 15% since the 2016-17 school year. 

Metric/Indicator 
10B) Coordination of Foster Youth Services Provide Education 
Related Information to County Welfare Agency to Assist in 
Delivery of Services (Educational Status & Progress Information 
Local Indicator 5 & 8):  Number of information sharing 
agreements (MOUs) established between KCOE and Agencies  
& County-wide District/Site Coordinator Trainings        
19-20 
MOU Established for Information Sharing 
4 District/Site Coordinator Trainings 
 
Agency      #MOU 
CWS         1/1 -  100% 

10B) MOU Established for Information Sharing 
We have a total of 16 MOUs throughout the county to support 
information sharing using Foster Focus. One MOU is with Health 
and Human Services, 14 with districts, and one with our probation 
department. 
Three District/Site Coordinator Training sessions were held in 
2019-20. The two spring training sessions were held virtually over 
Zoom. In addition, we held three county-wide district training 
sessions. 
 
Agency      #MOU 
CWS          2/2 - 100% 
LEA            14/14 - 100% 

46

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AMOs


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 28 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

LEA           14/14 - 100% 
Probation    1/1 - 100% 
        
Baseline 
MOU Established for Information Sharing 
0 District/Site Coordinator Trainings Held (2016-17) 
 
Agency      #MOU 
CWS            0 
LEA             0 
Probation     0 
        

Probation   1/1 - 100% 
 

Metric/Indicator 
10C) Coordination of Foster Youth Services Response to 
Juvenile Court Information Requests & Coordination of 
Necessary Educational Services: Creation, Training & Use of 
Educational Report Card for Probation use at court proceedings 
& Number of Transitional Conferences (Ages 17-21)        
19-20 
100% of District/Site Coordinators Trained on Educational Report 
Completion 20 Transitional Conferences (ages 17-21)        
Baseline 
O Educational Report Created (TK-12) 21 Transitional 
Conferences (ages 17-21)        

10C) 100% of District/Site Coordinators Trained on Educational 
Reports. Our staff produced 50 reports in grades TK-12 that 
support records requests between schools, social workers and the 
court system. 
50 Transitional Conferences (ages 17-21) were held during the 19-
20 school year. During the spring many were held via Zoom. This 
supports student transition between programs, school options, and 
indepedency. 
 

Metric/Indicator 
10D) Coordination of Foster Youth Services Efficient Expeditious 
Transfer of Health & Education Records & Health Education 
Passport (Local Indicator 1): Student Information Sharing System 
Established Agency Users by User Type        
19-20 
Agency          User Type     Number of Users 
KCOE                401                        4 
CWS Admin       201                       3 

10D) We currently have 6 different agencies collaborating within 
our information-sharing system. The majority of users are social 
workers, school and district staff. We added 67 users during the 
19-20 school year and provided 2 training sessions. There are a 
total of 182 users in the system. 
 
Agency          User Type     Number of Users 
KCOE                401                        8 
CWS Admin       201                        8 
CWS Case         221                      94 

47



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 29 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

CWS Case        221                      50 
LEA: District      521                      14 
LEA: Site          521                       25 
Probation         301                        2 
        
Baseline 
Agency          User Type     Number of Users 
KCOE                401                        4 
CWS Admin       201                       0 
CWS Case        221                        0 
LEA: District      521                        2 
LEA: Site          521                         0 
Probation         301                         0 
        

LEA: District       521                      14 
LEA: Site            521                      56 
Probation            301                        2 
 

Metric/Indicator 
LI) Executive Council Meeting (Local Indicator 2): Number of 
Executive Council Meetings held in current year        
19-20 
4 Meetings        
Baseline 
4 Meetings Held 2016-17        

LI) The executive council met twice during the school year to 
support program outcomes. Members discussed services at all 
school levels, resources, and community partner needs. We 
combined the meeting with our McKinney Vento programs, which 
support better collaboration. 

Metric/Indicator 
LI) Educational Outcome data (Local Indicator 3): ELA & Math 
State Assessment & Graduation Data for Foster/Non-Foster 
Outcomes & Achievement Gaps        
19-20 
ELA 
% Tested           Gap 
FY  96.5%                 2.5% 
Math 
FY  97%                   1.5% 
Graduation 
FY  76%                   15% 

LI) State testing for ELA and Math was suspended during the 19-
20 school year. Locally, we continue to support academic 
outcomes for students. We did win the small county FAFSA award 
and were able to provide student scholarships for foster students 
that enrolled in post-secondary programs to help support school 
supply needs. We continue to support student engagement and 
decreasing chronic absenteeism rates. Across the county, 80% of 
our foster students graduated, and 67% of those enrolled in a 
college. 19.9% of foster students in our county were chronically 
absent. 
ELA: 
% Tested           Gap 
FY  98%              1% 

48



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 30 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Academic Indicators 
ELA 
FY -60                      29 
Math 
FY -80                      42 
Chronic Absenteeism 
FY  18%                  8.3% 
        
Baseline 
Spring 2015 Dataquest 
ELA 2015 CAASPP 
(County) 
% Tested           Std. Exceeds or Met    Gap 
FY                 95%                      26% 
Non FY          97%                     37%                         11% 
 
Math 2015 CAASPP 
% Tested 
FY                  95%                    17% 
Non FY          97%                     24% 
Graduation 
FY                  50%                   GAP 32.3% 
Non FY          82.3% 
        

Math: 
FY  95%              2% 
Graduation: 
FY  80%              3% 
Academic Indicators - 
ELA: 
FY -76                  31 
Math: 
FY -83                   8 
Chronic Absenteeism: 
FY  19.9%            9.7% 
 

Metric/Indicator 
LI) Direct Education Services Certifications (Local Indicator 4): 
Required district certification agreements between COE & 
Districts to provide needed direct services to students        
19-20 
0        
Baseline 
0        

0 - No districts entered into a certification agreement to provide 
direct student services. We continue to coordinate services and 
information. 

49



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 31 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
LI) Coordination with Post -Secondary Institutions (Local Indicator 
6): Number of High School Foster Students attending College 
Financial Aide Workshops & Student Completed Applications        
19-20 
1 FAFSA Workshop 35% Foster HS Seniors Attended & 
Completed FAFSA application 
        
Baseline 
FAFSA Workshop Provided 7/50= 14% Foster HS Seniors 
Attended & Completed FAFSA application        

1 FAFSA Workshop 90% Foster HS Seniors Attended & 
Completed FAFSA application. 15-16 high school seniors 
completed the application. We held 2 workshops during 2019-20. 

Metric/Indicator 
LI) Prioritization of Foster Youth (Needs Assessment Local 
Indicator 7): Survey of Executive Council Members to identify 
program needs        
19-20 
100% of KCEAC Members surveyed        
Baseline 
100% of KCEAC Members surveyed        

100% of KCEAC Members surveyed. Members appreciated the 
shared resources, support at student centered meetings, and 
community partner collaboration. 

Metric/Indicator 
9) Coordinated Instruction of Expelled Pupils: Countywide 
Expulsion Plan: Number & % of expelled students in county that 
are supported by county-wide plan        
19-20 
# Students         Rate 
Kings          141                0.35% 
        
Baseline 
# Students         Rate 
Kings          141          0.5% 
State        5,662          0.1% 
Dataquest 2014-15 
        

9) There were 148 or 0.47% of students expelled throughout the 
county. We continue to work to support districts with school 
climate measures. 
# Students         Rate 
Kings          148                  0.47% 
 

50



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 32 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 
Actions / Services 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

1 Foster Youth Coordinator  2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$83,401  

 2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$93,939 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $8,173  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $9,225 

1 Educational Learning Advisor - Foster Youth  2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$56,650  

 2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$55,388 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $5,552  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $5,439 

50% Bilingual Clerical Support Secretary 50% Clerical Support 
Secretary 

 2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$28,405  

 2000-3999 Classified Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$29,861 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $2,874  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $2,932 

Foster Focus Data Network System for Districts, Outside Agencies, and 
the County Office of Education data sharing Foster Focus & District 
Maintenance Links 

Foster Focus Contract 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Foster Youth Grant 
$7,100  

Foster Focus Contract 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Foster Youth Grant 
$5,600 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $695  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $550 

Foster Youth Council Meeting Materials & Supplies  4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Foster Youth Grant $500  

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Foster Youth Grant $523 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $49  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $51 

Implement updated County-Wide Plan to Serve Expelled Youth 5% 
Administrator County-Wide Plan 

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
5% Staff 1000-3999 Certificated 
Salaries & Benefits Other $7,243  

Other Unrestricted State Funds 
5% Staff 1000-3999 Certificated 
Salaries & Benefits Other $8,689 

51

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AUActions


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 33 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Administrator Professional Memberships (ACSA & School Services)  5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,400  

Administrator Professional 
Memberships (ACSA & School 
Services) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $1,105 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $137  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo LCFF $109 

Foster Youth Director 30% Director of Curriculum  1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$43,283  

 1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & 
Benefits Foster Youth Grant 
$44,922 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $4,241  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $4,411 

Career & Vocational Training Program Student Salaries 2000-3999 
Classified Salaries & Benefits 
Foster Youth Grant $10,140  

Student Salaries 2000-3999 
Classified Salaries & Benefits 
Foster Youth Grant $0 

Student Training Meals 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Foster 
Youth Grant $2,000  

Student Training Meals 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Foster 
Youth Grant $0 

Tour Lunch 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Foster Youth Grant 
$400  

Tour Lunch 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Foster Youth Grant 
$0 

Van Rental & Motor Pool 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Foster 
Youth Grant $1,000  

Van Rental & Motor Pool 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Foster 
Youth Grant $0 

Consultant Contract Inter-Program 
Transfer 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Foster Youth Grant $1,000  

Consultant Contract Inter-Program 
Transfer 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Foster Youth Grant $0 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $1,425  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $0 

52



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 34 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Foster Youth Professional Development  5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Foster 
Youth Grant $10,000  

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Foster 
Youth Grant $5,033 

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $833  

Indirect Costs 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Foster Youth Grant $494 

 
Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Following is a description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, 
families, teachers, and staff. This is achieved by showing areas of increase and decrease in an effort to adjust planned amounts to 
support changes caused by COVID and their effects on student needs. 

 Action 1: Foster Coordinator action increased due to an increase in the salary scale. The action was implemented as planned 
to support Foster students and provide resources needed for higher student achievement and graduation support. 

 Action 2: Foster Learning Advisor's action decreased due to a slight decrease in the salary scale. The action was 
implemented as planned to support Foster students and provide resources needed for higher student achievement and 
graduation support. 

 Action 3: 50% Bilingual Clerical Support Secretary 50% Clerical Support Secretary action increased due to a slight increase in 
the salary scale. This action was implemented as it provided for a Clerical Support Secretary who could support the 
department regarding clerical work in both English and Spanish. 

 Action 4: Foster Focus Data Network System action decreased due to a decrease in cost. This was implemented to allow 
Districts, Outside Agencies, and the County Office of Education data sharing in Foster Focus & District Maintenance links. 

 Action 5: Foster Youth Council Meeting Materials & Supplies costs were slightly increased due to meeting needs. All required 
meetings were held in person or virtually. 

 Action 6: 5% Administrator to implement County-Wide Plan action was increased due to an increase in the salary scale. This 
action was executed for 5% of an administrator to implement and update County-Wide Plan to Serve Expelled Youth. 

 Action 7: Administrator Professional Memberships (ACSA & School Services) was slightly decreased due to the amount 
associated with the administration salary. This action was implemented to provide the administration with tools and resources 
to better serve Foster Youth. 

 Action 8: 30% Foster Youth Director action was increased slightly due to an increase in the salary scale. 
 Action 9: The Career & Vocational Training Program action incurred no cost as the in-person event was not held due to the 

pandemic. Instead, resources such as backpacks, hygiene supplies, feminine supplies, and school supplies were obtained 
from community partners and distributed to students/families in need. 

53

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 35 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Action 10: Foster Professional Development action costs were decreased by about 50% due to the fact that many meetings 
were changed to virtual attendance and travel expenses for meetings were only spent prior to March 2020. All required 
meetings were held in person or virtually. 

 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The following were overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services: 
Successes: 

 All actions used to support Foster Youth and to implement and update County-Wide Plan to Serve Expelled Youth were 
accomplished in spite of the effects of the COVID-19 health restrictions. 

 We added 67 users during the 19-20 school year and provided 2 training sessions. 
 Across the county, 80% of our foster students graduated, and 67% of those enrolled in a college. 
 FAFSA Workshop 90% Foster HS Seniors Attended & Completed FAFSA application. 

Challenges: 
 Meetings after March 2020 were not held in person but instead held virtually to support the COVID-19 health restrictions. This 

dampened the human connections associated with in-person meetings. The face-to-face communication would have allowed 
students to see how our actions align with our words and would have worked to enhance credibility in an already difficult 
time. 

 There were 148 or 0.47% of students expelled throughout the county. We continue to work to support districts with school 
climate measures. 

 Salary increases are difficult to plan for due to negotiations and/or change in personnel who may enter with more or less 
experience. 

Overall the goal and actions will need to be realigned and revised to meet the needs of the new 3-year plan in light of the pandemic-
related adjustments and considerations. The action that will not be a part of the 3-year plan is Career & Vocational Training Program. 
The Foster Youth support staff, collaboration, and supplies, as well as the Administrator for the County-wide, Expelled Youth Plan, 
were all instrumental in providing support for Foster Youth and Neglected Youth and effective in meeting the individual needs of 
students, however, as mentioned, these will be part of the realigned and revised actions in our new 3-year plan.  
 
 

54



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 36 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
 

The following is the local educational agency's (LEA's) analysis of its 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning 
Continuity Plan). 
 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 
Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 

Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Action 1: Rigorous Instructional Offerings: Western Association of 
Schools and  Colleges (WASC) renewal fee, APEX contract for 
student licenses and Edgenuity Software, Student incentives.  This 
action includes indirect costs. 

$24,121 $25,236 X Yes     

Action 2: Student Literacy Instruction: Contract Educational Resource 
Services to provide supplemental library materials, independent 
reading books to supplement LightSail, class sets of novels and 
storage, visuals, charts, and classroom books for history-social 
science.  This action includes indirect costs. 

$14,676 $14,661 X Yes     

Action 3: Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) 
Engagement: Science labs that include engineering, cordless 
microscopes, and Voyager temperature probes for collecting data 
during investigations.  This action includes indirect costs. 

$18,926 $18,926 X Yes     

Action 4: Supplemental Student Materials: Literacy, differentiation, 
student support, equipment for student preparation of materials, and 
student physical support supplies for students with severe needs. 

$24,531 $21,020 X No      

Action 5: Health and Safety: Disinfecting Supplies and Personal 
Protective Equipment 

$25,396 $29,285 X No      

 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
Overall there were no substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. We were able to provide all necessary services and materials associated with 
this cost. There were slightly more costs for disinfecting supplies and personal protective equipment, but we were able to make up 

55

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#LCPAnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#LCPAnnualUpdate
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#InPersonInstructionalOfferings
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#InPersonInstructionalOfferings


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 37 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

these costs with the slight decrease in supplemental student materials funds that were not spent. These costs were slightly lower as 
we had slightly fewer students who participated in the in-person program due to parent/doctor health concerns for our most severe 
special needs students.         
 
Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. 
Following is a description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year and 
includes available state and/or local data and stakeholder input as part of the analysis: 
 
J.C Montgomery: 
Successes: 

 rigorous instructional offerings were provided for students. 80% of students said the classes were Somewhat or Very 
academically challenging. 

 student literacy instruction was provided as JCM in-person instruction. 
 as this is a county court school, families/staff were pleased that the school was able to provide in-person instruction for most 

of the 2020-21 school year. 
Challenges: 

 In-person instruction was halted at times due to COVID quarantines. 
 some supplies were delayed due to COVID supply chain issues. 

 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School:  
Successes: 

 100% of staff were on-site providing instruction and service. 
 80% of students returned 5 days a week 4 hrs a day. 
 1 day a week required since October & 5 days since November 2nd. 

Challenges: 
 working with moderate-severe students we saw an increase in behavioral issue due to lack of structure from March to 

reopening 
 staff needed flexible work solutions due to their own childcare/school situations 
 staff quarantine due to exposure 

 
 

56

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#InPersonInstructionalOfferings
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#InPersonInstructionalOfferings


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 38 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Distance Learning Program 
 
Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 

Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Action 1: Professional Development for Distance Learning:  Distance 
Learning Playbook, 7.5 Days Contracted Services for Distance 
Learning Lesson Design, Common Lit Distance Learning professional 
development, and associated professional development supplies will 
be provided to support sustainability.  This action includes indirect 
costs. 

$11,072 $10,936 X Yes     

Action 2: Math & Science:  Student materials for Earth Science, 
Biology, and Math to allow for distance learning platforms and 
supplemental instruction to include Science related professional 
development. 10 days of contracted services to support Math and 
Science differentiated instruction.  This action includes indirect costs. 

$27,088 $31,855 X Yes     

Action 3: Summative, Formative Assessment and Data: Nearpod to 
design distance learning lessons that are engaging and include 
embedded formative assessments, and contracted services for half 
day professional development on Universal Design for Learning. This 
action includes indirect costs. 

$2,541 $2,541 X Yes     

Action 4: English Language Development: Supplemental digital 
curriculum and teacher time to support intensive language groups.  
This action includes indirect costs. 

$21,085 $57,958 X Yes     

Action 5: Technology Devices and Connectivity: Classroom cameras, 
earbuds, power cords, Chromebooks for staff for distance learning 
instruction, a document camera, Smart TV's for each classroom, 
Conference room cameras, Chromebooks for students,  and 
professional development conference for technology. This action 
includes indirect costs. 

$58,733 $46,972 X Yes     

Action 6: Student Literacy Instruction: Student independent reading 
program and professional learning implementation, teacher time to 
support reading intervention, and 4.5 days of contracted services to 

$7,252 $7,252 X Yes     

57

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 39 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

support reading, expository writing and character based literacy. This 
action includes indirect costs. 
Action 7: Technology: Student devices, meeting room display 
technology, home internet routers for connectivity, classroom 
projectors, digital document signing software for IEPs, and staff 
laptops with cameras. 

$371,722 $372,721 X No      

Action 8: Student Materials for Distance Learning: Google Enterprise 
updated Google Classroom platform, individual student distance 
learning kits, student packet copying costs, adapted Physical 
Education and school-based physical therapy equipment for distance 
learning, Boom Learning engaging student lessons, licenses for 
virtual therapy (speech, occupational and physical), parent translation 
and education for distance learning and technology, and Picture 
Exchange Communication systems (PECS)  for students with 
disabilities. 

$166,841 $94,603 X No      

Action 9: Licensed Vocational Nurse: Part time to support COVID-19 
tracing 

$6,500 $29,683 X No      

Action 10: Connectivity Upgrade for Infrastructure $28,031 $29,987 X No      

Action 11: Digital Platforms: Platform for synchronized student 
learning, single student sign on to support student and staff access to 
distance learning materials and web filtering and data managtment 

$16,985 $16,063 X No      

Action 12: Professional Development: Improving special education 
outcomes, monitoring student progress, and including responses to 
intervention within professional learning communities. 

$689 $689 X No      

 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
Following is a description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person 
instruction and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
Action 4: The $35,000 increase was due to an increase in staffing time used to support English Language Development. 
Action 5: The decrease in this action was due to a decrease in the costs needed to install the cameras, once the new TVs had been 
installed. The difference was moved to help cover the increase in action 4. 

58



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 40 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Action 8: The decrease in this action is a result of the purchase of fewer adapted physical education and physical therapy equipment 
pieces.  A bulk of the equipment was able to be purchased through the low-incidence earmarked funds. The family technical support 
was also provided by office staff and instructional assist. Picture Exchange Communication systems (PECS) training by staff was also 
not attended as they were unable to find time due to Distance Learning instruction needs. The extra funds were moved to Action 9 to 
support an increase in LVN time to Assistant HR in Medical Tracing, which required much more time than initially anticipated. 
         
 
Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 
2020-21 school year, as applicable: Continuity of Instruction, Access to Devices and Connectivity, Pupil Participation and Progress, 
Distance Learning Professional Development, Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and Support for Pupils with Unique Needs. 
Using the available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, the following are the successes and challenges of the 
implementation of each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 2020-21 school year:  
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 
1) Continuity of Instruction: 
Successes: 

 For the most part, JCM students were able to attend classes largely in person, however, they experienced short periods of 
virtual instruction due to occasional health concerns and took the appropriate measures as advised by the Kings County and 
California Health Departments. Students were able to access the curriculum during these periods and made progress similar 
to that made during the pre-COVID instructional period. 

Challenges: 
 As J.C. Montgomery is a County court school, students who are incarcerated often enter with many academic and social-

emotional issues and their time at JCM is fluid. This flow of entry and exit makes it challenging to implement continuity of 
instruction that ensures the students make noticeable or lasting changes. 

2) Access to Devices and Connectivity: 
Successes: 

 JCM students had continuous access to devices and connectivity, similar to that made available during the pre-COVID 
instructional period, for the 20-21 school year. 

 Students requested access to newer Chromebooks and alternative apps. 
Challenges: 

 Teacher devices, cameras, and connectivity needed to be updated to meet the needs during the short periods of distance 
learning time. 

3) Pupil Participation and Progress & Support for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs 
served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness: 
Successes: 

59

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 41 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 JCM students are incarcerated and are required to attend classes as a part of their time in the facility. All students were still 
required to take a diagnostic iReady assessment upon entering the facility. Student scores are reviewed along with their 
home-school records to determine proper educational and social-emotional supports. These identified target areas are 
tailored to support pupils with unique needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs, pupils in foster care, 
and pupils who would otherwise experience homelessness. 

Challenges: 
 As always, some JCM students are sometimes reluctant to attend class or participate fully in the educational program. 
 Through survey feedback, students request more social-emotional support. We work diligently to support students in a social-

emotional manner in an effort to increase engagement and participation. 
4) Distance Learning Professional Development: 
Successes: 

 Teachers were heavily supported by administration and consultants from Kings County of Education. The original consultant 
support contracts were put in place to support teachers in a normal school year, however, with COVID, support was adjusted 
to meet the immediate needs of the teachers and students. Although there were only short periods of distance learning, 
instruction was adjusted to accommodate safety/health concerns, as needed. 

Challenges: 
 A new Science curriculum had already been scheduled to be purchased prior to COVID, so the professional development 

focus was modified to meet the urgent needs of teachers and students. The normal lesson planning and unit development 
that would have occurred was largely put on hold in order to meet the immediate instructional needs. 

5) Staff Roles and Responsibilities: 
Successes: 

 Teachers, correctional staff, consultants, and administration all came together to support the immediate needs of the students 
in the midst of a pandemic. Many of the pre-COVID plans were put on hold and instead, everyone came together to meet the 
urgent needs of the educational program at JCM. Administrators surveyed were pleased with the willingness of staff to step in 
and lend a hand. 

Challenges: 
 The unknowns of this pandemic weighed greatly on the teachers, correctional staff, consultants, and administration, as well as 

the students. The gravity of the situation weighed heavily and pushed teachers, correctional staff, consultants, and 
administration to stretch their previously defined roles and responsibilities. 

 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School:  
1) Continuity of Instruction: 
Successes: 

 Curriculum for all programs is available digitally so students could access the same curriculum from home. 
Challenges: 

 Due to the nature of the disabilities, cognitive capacity, social-emotional challenges, and behavioral, these make continuity of 
instruction difficult 

60



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 42 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Instruction in the home varies depending on the parent's ability to help from home. Parents are generally not well versed in 
the specialized strategies required to teach students with special needs. 

2) Access to Devices and Connectivity: 
Successes: 

 Prioritized device distribution for unduplicated students or students who were unable to access at any level. Some students 
were medically unable to attend school, so these students were also made a priority. 

Challenges: 
 Due to the nature of the students we serve, we had a few classroom desktop devices in the classroom but we were not set up 

for one-to-one device access. 
 We ordered 100 devices in March and did not receive them until July. We ordered 350 additional devices in July to prepare for 

the new year of Distance Learning, We received 150 in March/April. At this point, we are still missing 200 devices. 
3) Pupil Participation and Progress & Support for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs 
served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness: 
Successes: 

 Online programs such as Boom Learning were engaging. These programs helped to provide visuals and made learning 
interesting, thus increasing engagement and participation. 

 Regarding our surveys, 91.6% of parents reported their child participated in distance learning over the last three months 
Challenges: 

 Teacher observations of students were restricted. This caused a disruption in a meaningful evaluation of progress. 
 At times, Parents would restrict students from attending school to be evaluated in person. 
 Participation virtually was difficult for students and Parent participation was also not consistent which added to difficulties. 

4) Distance Learning Professional Development: 
Successes: 

 Year-long program focused on student communication with monthly professional development. The focus was adjusted to 
apply to Distance Learning needs. 

 In surveys, teachers reported the ability to learn more about Unique, Zoom, and Google Classroom, and overall the training 
helped a lot. 

Challenges: 
 Staff participation keeping in mind the social-emotional needs of staff. 

5) Staff Roles and Responsibilities: 
Successes: 

 Instructional assistants did wellness checks to make sure students who were getting on the bus were healthy. 
 LVN & RN were very effective in contact tracing. 
 The office staff continues to support families with connectivity issues and communicate with parents. 
 Staff cleaning and sanitizing classroom areas. 
 Custodial staff disinfecting classes and high traffic areas. 
 Administrators surveyed were pleased with the willingness of staff to step in and lend a hand. 

Challenges: 

61



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 43 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Teachers wanted to keep ALL students on their caseload. The administration initially tried to assign teacher groups to handle 
either Distance Learning or In-Person instruction, but teachers wanted to keep all students. It has proven to become difficult 
for teachers to manage both groups. 

 
 

62



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 44 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Pupil Learning Loss 
 
Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss 

Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Action 1: English Language Arts and Math Interventions and 
Supports: iReady tailored assessment and instruction program, 
student materials for math intervention, teacher time for English 
Language Arts and Math small group intensive intervention, and 
Edgenuity targeted intervention. This action includes indirect costs. 

$50,338 $49,583 X Yes     

Action 2: Special Education Intervention Program $1,495 $1,500 X No      
 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
This action was largely on target in relation to budgeted expenses, however, we spent approximately $800 less in math instructional 
supplies as some activities were completed with virtual manipulatives.         
 
Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year and an analysis of the 
effectiveness of the efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss to date.  
Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, the following is a description of the successes and challenges 
experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year: 
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 
Successes: 

 For the most part, JCM students were able to attend classes largely in person. Pupil Learning Loss measures were put into 
place and helpful for the short periods of virtual instruction as advised by the Kings County and California Health 
Departments. iReady was helpful in monitoring learning loss as well as assigning appropriate intervention measures. All 
students were still required to take a diagnostic iReady assessment upon entering the facility. Student scores are reviewed 
along with their home-school records to determine proper educational and social-emotional supports. Through individual 
student transitional meetings, upon student entrance and exit, these identified target areas are tailored to support all students 
especially pupils with unique needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs, pupils in foster care, and 
pupils who would otherwise experience homelessness. 

63

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 45 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Challenges: 
 As J.C. Montgomery is a County Court school, students who are incarcerated often enter with many deficiencies and their 

time at JCM is fluid. This flow of entry and exit makes it difficult to implement intervention strategies that will help the students 
to make noticeable or lasting changes. 

 In survey feedback, 48% of students requested "more help". 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School: 
Successes: 

 One-on-one support was implemented in September 
 All students who chose in-person instruction were in school by November 2nd and attended 5 days a week. 80% of Parents 

were already anticipating returning their student to in-person learning for the following year in an effort to address any 
learning loss. 

 Individual goals highlighted in the student's IEPs helped as we discussed strategies to target any decrease in skills. Individual 
goal assistance was especially helpful in assisting English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; 
and pupils who are experiencing homelessness. 

Challenges: 
 Virtual instruction was difficult to not only engage students, but we were highly dependent on Parents to help. 
 Parent survey feedback indicated many parents had a difficult time helping their students from home due to issues like time 

and skill set. 
 
 

64



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 46 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in monitoring and supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. 
Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, the following is a description of the successes and challenges 
experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of both pupils and staff during the 2020-
21 school year:  
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 
Successes: 

 "Stories with Style" has been hugely successful in supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being for the 
students at JCM. These lessons have been designed to allow students to tell their life stories through music, writing, and 
illustrations. According to student and staff feedback, the cathartic experiences have not only helped students socially & 
emotionally but these stories and experiences have been instrumental in allowing students to connect with the caring adults 
associated with the program as well. 

 Staff received county support through opportunities for mindfulness practices offered by mental health staff. 
Challenges: 

 The pandemic has managed to affect students and staff negatively as they mentally, socially, and emotionally make sense of 
the challenges of daily life while trying to stay healthy. 

 Student surveys revealed students were requesting more mental health and social-emotional support. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School:  
Successes: 

 Students: they were being seen virtually or in-person by LMFT 
 Staff: opportunities for mindfulness practices offered by mental health staff 
 Check-ins with staff to celebrate wins at monthly staff meetings 

Challenges: 
 Students: behavior management and emotional response have been difficult for students who did not or have not been 

attending in-person instruction. 
 Staff: management of own mental wellbeing while addressing the social-emotional needs of students during virtual and in-

person instruction has been a struggle. 
 Parent surveys revealed their students struggled to emotionally regulate themselves with the changes and restrictions they 

had been subjected to. 
 
 

65

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 47 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 school year. 
Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders the following, describes the successes and challenges related 
to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year: 
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 
The following is a summary of the student engagement and family outreach procedures from the J.C. Montgomery Reopening Plan: 
When a student is disengaged from assigned work - Tier 1, probation monitors student login, and students will be redirected to log in. 
Completion of work is based on teacher feedback and a teacher-student meeting will be held if students are not successfully 
completing the assignments. Coordination with probation occurs to notify parents. Regular progress reports and transcript updates are 
sent to parents or guardians. The transition specialist would call home to discuss the lack of student engagement with parents or 
guardians. Tier 2, probation will email the principal if the student has not logged in multiple times. The principal will provide learning 
scaffolding and possibly provide alternate assignments. The transitional specialist may hold a student study team meeting to 
coordinate efforts for re-engagement. The resource specialist program teacher would call home to discuss students with individualized 
education programs who are disengaged. Tier 3, probation, principal, and a transitional specialist will meet with the student. Probation 
outcomes may result in possibly reporting to the court or students may be posted in a more restricted unit. The resource specialist 
program teacher may hold an IEP meeting to address student progress. The transition specialist may provide translation services and 
facilitated outreach support as needed throughout this process. 
 
Successes: 

 JCM students are incarcerated and are required to attend classes as a part of their time in the facility, thus tiered re-
engagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to pupils 
and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in instruction, 
is not applicable. 

 Parent Survey: How would you rate the communication from the school to the parents or guardians? 94% said Very or 
Somewhat Effective. 

Challenges: 
 As always, some JCM students are sometimes reluctant to attend class or participate fully in the educational program. We 

work diligently to support students in a social-emotional manner in an effort to increase full participation and increase student 
engagement. 

 Approximately, 45% of Parent/Guardian participated in surveys. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School:  
Our tiered reengagement included:  
Tier 1 would include students who are regularly attending school. These students will receive positive recognition and rewards from 
their teacher and paraprofessional in an effort to reinforce positive participation. Tier 2 would occur once a student has had a single-
day absence. Teachers and paraprofessionals would at that time contact parents or guardians through their preferred mode of 

66

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilandFamilyEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#PupilandFamilyEngagementandOutreach


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 48 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

communication and let them know that they were missed during the day’s activities. They would remind them of the next day’s 
schedule of activities and offer to help or set up an additional one-on-one time via Zoom. They would also ask what areas of support 
the family needs to avoid excess absences. Tier 3 occurs when the student is absent from instruction for 2 consecutive days. In 
addition to tier 2 actions, the Teacher contacts related service providers to check on the level of communication and engagement they 
are getting from families. The teacher will consult with the previous teachers to devise the best ways to engage the family. The teacher 
notifies the Program Administrator of absences as well. Tier 4 occurs when the student is absent from instruction for 3 consecutive 
days or more than 3 days per week. Counselors, School Psychologists, and other direct services staff have also worked with families 
to provide or offer access to extended services in an effort to engage families.  
 
Successes: 

 In-person instruction experienced good attendance. The staff has been helpful about connecting with families when students 
were not engaging in virtual lessons via their preferred manner of communication. 

 Through survey feedback, Parents reported their children were happy to hear from teachers and support staff. 
Challenges: 

 Some families have chosen not to participate regardless of our efforts to not participate and have gone as far as to ask us not 
to contact them. The SARB processes are still being worked on. We have realized the challenges with this process due to the 
pandemic. We are working on implementing consistency with the process. 

 
 
Analysis of School Nutrition 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in providing school nutrition in the 2020-21 school year. 
Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, the following describes the successes and challenges 
experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school year: 
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 

 Successes/Challenges: 
JCM students are incarcerated and were provided three nutritionally adequate meals per day by the California Department of 
Corrections as part of their program. There were no changes to their daily meals as a result of the pandemic. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School:  
Successes: 

 The Seamless Summer Program has been great at providing meals for all children under the age of 18, regardless of school 
of origin, which has been helpful for students who do not live close to the main campus. Families and staff are thankful for the 
assistance for families experiencing food insecurities. 

 District funds have provided us an opportunity to help families as the extended need is there. 
 The county districts have stepped up to serve students located in their areas. 

67

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 49 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Challenges: 
 Ensuring families that are in Distance Learning knew where to go to receive the local pick-up. 
 We have continued to work with districts to make sure information is communicated directly to students if there are changes in 

distribution schedules. 
 
 

68



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 50 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 
 
Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 

Section Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Mental Health and 
Social and Emotional 
Well-Being 

Action 1: Art Presenter to connect to student with 
art demonstration, student art materials. This action 
includes indirect costs. 

$13,703 $14,503 X Yes     

Mental Health and 
Social and Emotional 
Well-Being 

Action 2: Music Student mobile sound labs and 
professional development to support 
implementation of sound equipment. This action 
includes indirect costs. 

$22,171 $25,577 X Yes     

Mental Health and 
Social and Emotional 
Well-Being 

Action 3: Student Connections Trauma Presenter 
to connect to students, discuss trauma and support 
transformation and inspire resilience. This action 
includes indirect costs. 

$24,334 $24,334 X Yes     

Mental Health and 
Social and Emotional 
Well-Being 

Action 4: Social Emotional Learning Professional 
learning support for developing social emotional 
learning digital storytelling including music, visuals 
and marketing, student art materials, image 
subscription, student digital art tablets, and graphic 
design software. This action includes indirect costs. 

$23,876 $23,187 X Yes     

Pupil Engagement and 
Outreach 

Action 5: Family Engagement Parent meeting 
supplies and materials for Student Study Teams 
meetings, Coffee Hours, Parent Education, School 
Site Council, and English Learner Advisory 
Committees. Staff time to support student tiered 
intervention, including Consultant/Principal, clerical 
support, and general mileage for student meetings. 
This action includes indirect costs. 

$65,814 $51,105 X Yes     

School Nutrition Action 6: Nutritional Services for students $2,000 $776 X No      

69

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 51 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Section Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Mental Health and 
Social and Emotional 
Well-Being 

Action 7: Social Emotional Learning for students 
with disabilities: Contracted services to support 
teacher created lessons and support for parents. 

$9,000 $13,435 X No      

 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the additional plan 
requirements and what was implemented and expended on the actions. 
Following is a description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional 
actions to implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions: 

 Action 1: An $800 increase was included to allow for additional student art materials. 
 Action 2: An additional $3,400 was used to cover costs for student supplies for the music and sound activities. 
 Action 5: The $14,000 decrease in cost was largely due to administrator salary percentage changes. The difference was 

applied to action 7. 
 Action 6: Nutritional Services for students. Seamless Summer food program allowed for free lunches for all students, thus 

decreasing additional costs. 
 Action 7: This action was initially created to provide both contracted services to support teacher-created lessons and support 

for parents. We instead spent funds (and increased the amount) to address Parent and Student needs to seek mental health 
services. These were provided through our in-house psychologists. 

Overall, although there was an $11,000 decrease in the amount allocated for contributing actions, however, all planned activities, 
supplies, and services were provided. 
 
 
Overall Analysis 
 
An explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have informed the 
development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 
Following is an explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP: 
1) Health and safety considerations: Health and safety precautions will continue into the future. However, the level of restriction is still 
fluid. We will also need to keep possible social distancing restrictions as we continue. 
2) Distance learning: Teachers are much more equipped to handle any distance learning instruction that would be required due to 
health restrictions. When the pandemic first occurred staff was not well versed in implementing best practices as it relates to Distance 
Learning. Shelly Baird Students did not have access to 1-to-1 devices. Since then, we have been able to acquire the technology 
students would need and the skillset teachers needed should we have to return to Distance Learning. 

70

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#OverallAnalysis1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#OverallAnalysis1


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 52 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

3) Monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being:  We recognize that students, families, and staff have all 
struggled with mental health and social-emotional well-being issues as a result of the pandemic. Some families have had to deal with 
food, job, and housing insecurities as well as health issues due to COVID. At times the staff has had to deal with trauma from student 
struggles as well as their own personal family struggles. We believe Trauma from these struggles has not changed and as such we 
realize they will all need support. In the new 3-year plan we have seriously considered these mental health and social-emotional well-
being needs and have placed them at the forefront. 
4) Engaging pupils and families: Students have had an overall difficult time focussing on their academic success while dealing with the 
issues in their own homes as a result of the pandemic. As such, we have taken into account that we will need to plan engaging and 
innovative lessons to re-engage students in their academics. We will also need to continue to communicate with parents now more 
than ever to work as a team to ensure students are engaged in their own education and are able to advocate for their own academic 
and social-emotional needs. 
         
 
An explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with 
unique needs. 
Following is an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs: 
 
J.C. Montgomery (JCM): 
As this is a county court school, all student academic monitoring and intervention is tailored to meet individual student needs. A 
system is in place to include initial and post benchmarks using iReady English Language Arts and Mathematics assessments to help 
us adequately address pupil learning loss. There is a need to support unduplicated students in these subject areas, as many J.C. 
Montgomery students are lacking foundational skills. New enrollees take the pre-diagnostic test within five days given by the principal 
and transition specialist. A 30-day diagnostic assessment will also be scheduled and administered by the transition specialist. From 
then on, students will take the Diagnostic Assessments every other month. More specifically ongoing assessments will be held in 
August, October, December, February, April, June via iReady diagnostic for both English Language Arts and Mathematics. 
Assessments for English language development will be administered frequently using ELD-focused assessments to gauge the 
progress of designated and integrated intervention in the areas of listening, speaking, reading, and writing. Prior English Language 
Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) data will also be used to target student areas of need. Other core areas such as 
Science and Social Studies will be monitored to determine areas of need.  These other areas will be monitored through Edgenuity unit 
tests in accordance with the subject area guidelines. The individualized nature of the program is especially helpful for pupils with 
unique needs including low-income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are 
experiencing homelessness. 
 
Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School: 
Shelly Baird School is a district school that provides support and services for Kings County students (3-22 years old) with complex and 
intensive educational needs who are identified as students requiring special education supports.  As such, all services provided to 
students are highly individualized. Profile assessments through Unique Curriculum will be conducted for English Language Arts, 

71



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 53 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Mathematics, Science, and Social Studies. Within the curriculum, unit pre-and post-tests will be conducted each month. The Edgenuity 
program will assist teachers to assess pupils to measure learning status in English Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, Social 
Studies, and other elective courses. Data on IEP goals is collected multiple times each quarter and more frequently if students are 
participating via in-person instruction. This data is continuously discussed throughout the year to gauge student-specific IEP goal 
progress. Language goals are monitored as a part of a student's IEP as well. The personalized nature of the program is especially 
helpful for pupils with unique needs including low-income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities, pupils in foster care, and 
pupils who are experiencing homelessness. 
         
 
A description of any substantive differences between the description of the actions or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement and the actions or services implemented to meet the increased or improved 
services requirement. 
Following is a description of any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, 
and the actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. 
 
1) In-Person Instruction 
The first section addresses in-person instruction as defined in California Education Code (EC) Section 43500(b) the physical 
supervision and control of the Local Education Agency. This area will address the actions Kings County Office of Education will take 
when health and safety allow a return to in-person instruction. Within this section, there were no substantive differences between the 
actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement. 
2) Distance Learning Program 
This section contains information that explains how the Local Education Agency will provide continuity of instruction and learning to 
ensure that pupils have access to a substantially similar curriculum regardless of the method of delivery. The overall substantive 
differences for contributing actions showed an actual increase in spending of $27,700. These additional funds were used to increase 
and improve services to unduplicated students. Individual costs were explained in the Distance Learning Program section. 
3) Pupil Learning Loss 
The next section addressed pupil learning loss, which described how, with what tools, and at what frequency the Local Education 
Agency assessed students to measure learning status regardless of the delivery model. Within this section, there were no substantive 
differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement. 
4) Additional Actions 
The final section addressed actions used to implement Mental Health and Social-Emotional Well Being, Pupil and Family Engagement 
and Outreach, and School Nutrition. Overall, although there was an $11,000 decrease in the amount allocated for contributing actions, 
however, all planned activities, supplies, and services were provided. The decrease in fund expenditures was reallocated to help cover 
the increased costs in the Distance Learning Section. 
         
 

72



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 54 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan  
 
A description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP. 
Following is a description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP: 
Overall the goals and actions from the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan will need to be 
realigned, revised, and added to in order to meet the needs of students in the new 3-year plan in light of the pandemic-related 
adjustments and considerations. Some actions that will not be a part of the 3-year plan are 1) Professional Learning Communities 
(PLCs), 2) 5% Data and Assessment Consultant, 3) Physical Education Program Expansion Supplies, 4) Provide professional 
development in California State Standards, 5) Student Information System (SIS), 6) 25% of a Teacher to support intensive 
intervention, 7) Intern Support, 8) Teacher Professional Development Positive Discipline, 9) Parent Positive Discipline Training, 10) the 
purchase of Apex, 11) the continued use of iLit curriculum (we will be providing Consulting time to help build population/needs specific 
units), 12) Translations (this has been absorbed into the current staff positions), 13) PIQE Contract (we will be providing more targeted 
parent education classes), and 14) Career & Vocational Training Program. Based on changing health restrictions, we also will not be 
in need of the large amounts of PPE supplies and Technology that was needed at the beginning of the pandemic.  The social-
emotional and mental well-being of families and staff will remain a priority throughout the next plan. We will also continue to 
communicate with families and staff to continue to support re-engagement within the community. 
         
 

73

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#OverallAnalysis2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#OverallAnalysis2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/LCAPandLCPAnnualUpdateInstructions.htm#OverallAnalysis2


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 55 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Instructions: Introduction 
The Annual Update Template for the 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Annual Update for the 2020–21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan must be completed as part of the development of the 2021-22 LCAP. In subsequent years, 
the Annual Update will be completed using the LCAP template and expenditure tables adopted by the State Board of Education. 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Year 
Annual Update 
The planned goals, state and/or local priorities, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the approved 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 
Duplicate the Goal, Annual Measurable Outcomes, Actions / Services and Analysis tables as needed. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in 2019-20, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to the expected annual measurable 
outcomes identified in 2019-20 for the goal. If an actual measurable outcome is not available due to the impact of COVID-19 provide a 
brief explanation of why the actual measurable outcome is not available. If an alternative metric was used to measure progress towards 
the goal, specify the metric used and the actual measurable outcome for that metric. 
Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services, the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions toward achieving the described goal and 
the actual expenditures to implement the actions/services.  
Goal Analysis 
Using available state and local data and input from parents, students, teachers, and other stakeholders, respond to the prompts as 
instructed. 

 If funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were expended on other actions and services through the end 
of the school year, describe how the funds were used to support students, including low-income, English learner, or foster youth 
students, families, teachers and staff. This description may include a description of actions/services implemented to mitigate the 
impact of COVID-19 that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. 

74

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 56 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Describe the overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services. As part of the description, specify which 
actions/services were not implemented due to the impact of COVID-19, as applicable. To the extent practicable, LEAs are 
encouraged to include a description of the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal. 

Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan 
Annual Update 
The action descriptions and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim from the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings  
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to in-person instruction and 

the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 

 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. If in-
person instruction was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to the distance learning 

program and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 

 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing distance learning in the 2020-21 school year in each of the following 
areas, as applicable:  

o Continuity of Instruction,  
o Access to Devices and Connectivity,  

75



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 57 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

o Pupil Participation and Progress,  
o Distance Learning Professional Development,  
o Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and  
o Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full 

continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness 
To the extent practicable, LEAs are encouraged to include an analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program to 
date. If distance learning was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 

Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to addressing pupil learning 

loss and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 

 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. To the 
extent practicable, include an analysis of the effectiveness of the efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who 
are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, 
as applicable. 

Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 

the successes and challenges experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of 
both pupils and staff during the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. 

Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 

the successes and challenges related to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year, including implementing 
tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to 
pupils and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in 
instruction, as applicable. 

Analysis of School Nutrition 

76



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 58 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school 
year, whether participating in in-person instruction or distance learning, as applicable. 

Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 
 In the table, identify the section, the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the additional actions and the estimated 

actual expenditures to implement the actions, as applicable. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional actions to 
implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompts are to be responded to only once, following an analysis of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 

 Provide an explanation of how the lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 
have informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP.  

o As part of this analysis, LEAs are encouraged to consider how their ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic has 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP, such as health and safety considerations, distance 
learning, monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being and engaging pupils and families. 

 Provide an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness).  

 Describe any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. If the LEA has 
provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement within the In-Person Instruction, Distance Learning Program, Learning Loss, or 
Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those descriptions as part of this description. 

Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompt is to be responded to only once, following the analysis of both the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.  

 Describe how the analysis and reflection related to student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, as applicable. 

 
77



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 59 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

California Department of Education 
January 2021 

 

78



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 60 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

 

Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 
Expenditure Summary 

 
Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2019-20 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2019-20 
Annual Update 

Actual 
All Funding Sources 721,180.99 668,589.00 
Foster Youth Grant 267,721.00 258,368.00 
LCFF 241,432.00 209,533.00 
Not Applicable 0.00 0.00 
Other 19,824.00 19,275.00 
Title I N&D 182,280.40 169,992.00 
Title II 9,923.59 11,421.00 
 9,923.59 11,421.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

79



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 61 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2019-20 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2019-20 
Annual Update 

Actual 
All Expenditure Types 721,180.99 668,589.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 0.00 114,073.00 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & Benefits 284,712.00 183,281.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 0.00 33,840.00 
2000-3999 Classified Salaries & Benefits 211,130.00 179,188.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 13,700.00 3,328.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 86,508.00 50,269.00 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs 50,067.99 46,882.00 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 12,600.00 687.00 
7000-7439: Other Outgo 62,463.00 57,041.00 
Not Applicable 0.00 0.00 
 0.00 0.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

80



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 62 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2019-20 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2019-20 
Annual Update 

Actual 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 721,180.99 668,589.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I N&D 0.00 114,073.00 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & Benefits Foster Youth Grant 43,283.00 44,922.00 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & Benefits LCFF 119,162.00 123,420.00 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & Benefits Other 13,501.00 14,939.00 
1000-3999 Certificated Salaries & Benefits Title I N&D 108,766.00 0.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF 0.00 33,840.00 
2000-3999 Classified Salaries & Benefits Foster Youth Grant 178,596.00 179,188.00 
2000-3999 Classified Salaries & Benefits LCFF 32,534.00 0.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies Foster Youth Grant 2,500.00 523.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF 11,200.00 2,805.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

Foster Youth Grant 19,500.00 10,633.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

LCFF 54,708.00 30,855.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

Other 5,200.00 3,622.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

Title I N&D 7,100.00 5,159.00 

5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs LCFF 2,100.00 100.00 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs Title I N&D 38,929.40 36,382.00 
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs Title II 9,038.59 10,400.00 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

Title I N&D 12,600.00 687.00 

7000-7439: Other Outgo Foster Youth Grant 23,842.00 23,102.00 
7000-7439: Other Outgo LCFF 21,728.00 18,513.00 
7000-7439: Other Outgo Other 1,123.00 714.00 
7000-7439: Other Outgo Title I N&D 14,885.00 13,691.00 
7000-7439: Other Outgo Title II 885.00 1,021.00 
Not Applicable Not Applicable 0.00 0.00 
  0.00 0.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

81



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 63 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2019-20 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2019-20 
Annual Update 

Actual 
Goal 1 239,355.99 200,834.00 
Goal 2 135,013.00 134,829.00 
Goal 3 70,311.00 64,655.00 
Goal 4 276,501.00 268,271.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

82



Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 64 of 64 
Kings County Office of Education

Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Offering/Program 

Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 

In-Person Instructional Offerings $107,650.00 $109,128.00 

Distance Learning Program $718,539.00 $701,260.00 

Pupil Learning Loss $51,833.00 $51,083.00 

Additional Actions and Plan Requirements $160,898.00 $152,917.00 

All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $1,038,920.00 $1,014,388.00 
 

Expenditures by Offering/Program (Not Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 

Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 

In-Person Instructional Offerings $49,927.00 $50,305.00 

Distance Learning Program $590,768.00 $543,746.00 

Pupil Learning Loss $1,495.00 $1,500.00 

Additional Actions and Plan Requirements $11,000.00 $14,211.00 

All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $653,190.00 $609,762.00 
 

Expenditures by Offering/Program (Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 

Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 

In-Person Instructional Offerings $57,723.00 $58,823.00 

Distance Learning Program $127,771.00 $157,514.00 

Pupil Learning Loss $50,338.00 $49,583.00 

Additional Actions and Plan Requirements $149,898.00 $138,706.00 

All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $385,730.00 $404,626.00 

83



 
 

Local Control Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos           

Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services 
joy.santos@kingscoe.org           
(559)589-7068 

 

Plan Summary [2021-22] 
 
General Information 
 

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students. 
 

Kings County is a rural agricultural community, located in the San Joaquin Valley. The California Department of Finance estimated the 
county's population was 152,940 as of July 1, 2019.  It is home to three (3) state prison institutions, California State Prison - Corcoran, 
Avenal State Prison, and Pleasant Valley State Prison. The county-wide percentage of Unduplicated Pupil Count of Free/Reduced-Price 
Meals, including English Learners and Foster Youth, in 20-21 was 70.8%. Of these unduplicated students, English Learners made up 17.7% 
(5,261 students) and 381 (in 19-20) students were Foster Youth. Kings County educational institutions include one (1) County Office of 
Education, nine (9) Elementary School Districts, two (2) High School Districts, two (2) Unified School districts, and thirteen (13) charter 
schools. With a few exceptions, the typical district grade configurations in Kings County are elementary (K-8), high (9-12), and unified (K-12). 
 
Kings County Office of Education (KCOE) is located in Kings County in Hanford, California. Our county-run programs include two special 
population schools: Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School and J.C. Montgomery (JCM) School. Our special education site, 
Shelly Baird, is not only funded differently but their students will no longer be reflected in our dashboard.  As such, you will not see Shelly 
Baird's school expenditures in this plan. J.C. Montgomery is a court school that serves incarcerated youth at the juvenile detention center 
and is the only school funded directly by the Local Control Funding Formula. The school-wide percentage of Unduplicated Pupil Count of 
Free/Reduced-Price Meals, including English Learners (3 students (15.8 %)) and Foster Youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), in 
20-21 was 100%. It is important to understand the nature of our county's alternative education program as covered by this Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP), including the traumatic needs, academic challenges, and transiency of the student population served.  This 
LCAP was developed with an understanding and appreciation of the unique issues our students face, as well as the temporal nature of their 

84

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 2 of 52

time enrolled in our educational program. We will also be using the WASC Action Plan, stakeholder feedback, and Local Indicators to guide 
our student improvement. Students at the court school come to us having been incarcerated pending their court proceedings or to serve their 
sentence for failure to successfully abide by judicial laws. Our students often come to us challenged with credit deficiencies, disengagement 
from school, local community and at times even their own families, from low-income or unemployed circumstances, struggling with drug use 
or abuse (either themselves or a family member), mental health issues, lack of both social coping skills, a mindset of educational 
despondence, and lack of self-discipline and/or esteem. Many of the students require intense intervention due to the lack of fundamental 
reading and/or math skills. Our program is key to providing students a successfully engaging education and providing them the tools they 
need to become productive citizens in our community. 
         

 
 
Reflections: Successes 
 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Following is a description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data: 
1) Stakeholders have provided feedback requesting that students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials, 100% fully 
credentialed teachers, and 100% appropriately assigned teachers. 
2) Facilities reviews have returned exemplary results.  
3) We are seeking to maintain (or increase) the following favorable survey feedback results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness: 
Parents: 93.8% Feel Safe & 93.8% Feel Connected; Teachers: 100% Feel School Safe & 100% Feel Connected via collaboration 
4) ELPAC - In order to protect student privacy, data is suppressed because 10 or fewer students tested. As such, we are using Designated 
ELD GPA: 3.33/ B+. 
State and Local Indicator self-assessment, based on stakeholder feedback as well as state and local data: 

• Full Implementation and Sustainability in providing professional learning for teaching ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA. 
• Full Implementation and Sustainability in making instructional materials that are aligned to the academic standards and/or 

curriculum frameworks for the following subject areas: ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA 
Standards), Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. 

• Full Implementation and Sustainability in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying areas where they can 
improve in delivering instruction aligned to the academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks for the following subject areas: 
ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards), Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for 
Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. 

• An area of strength is related to the Title I and Schools Site Council (SSC)/School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) work 
surrounding communication we have completed. We have worked diligently to promote parent communication and the opportunity 
to provide input as we work together to advance student achievement. 

• An area of strength where we would like to continue to improve is the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming environments for all 
families in the community. Due to COVID, in-person parent meetings were difficult, however, we made it a priority to provide a 
virtual space for school leaders and parents to work together. 

85

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsSuccesses


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 3 of 52

• An area of strength where we would like to continue improving is the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting 
principals and staff to effectively engage families in advisory groups and decision-making. Parents are invited to participate in 
regularly scheduled SSC meetings. We continue to provide materials in English and Spanish and have moved to a virtual platform in 
light of the pandemic. 

• The Kings County alternative schools program consists of one school, JC Montgomery. 100% of students, including unduplicated 
students, have access to required courses. All English learners have access to integrated and designated ELD. 100% of students 
with exceptional needs have an IEP that includes access to services provided both through the educational program and the 
department of corrections. 

 
 

Reflections: Identified Need 
 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 
 

Following is a description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any 
areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address 
those areas:  
State and Local Data:  
1) We are seeking to increase local iReady benchmarks which show 45% of Students Showing Growth in ELA and 35.8% of Students 
Showing Growth in Math. This local assessment is in lieu of CAASPP state assessment results as we have historically had less than 11 
students thus data is not displayed for privacy purposes.  
2) We are seeking to decrease High School dropout rates which show 52.94%. 
3) We are seeking to increase High School graduation rates which show 29.41%. 
4) We are seeking to increase the access to electives based on the current student elective participation showing 12 classes. 
5) We are seeking to increase parent feedback and participation as seen in the following baseline metric: 44.4% participation by all 
Parent/Guardians on the 2020 Spring LCAP Survey. 
6) We are seeking to decrease student suspension for all students and low-income students: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, increased 
0.3%, Very High. 
7) We are seeking to increase the following survey feedback results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness: Pupils: 68.5% Feel Safe & 
47.4% Feel Connected. 
State and Local Indicator self-assessment, based on stakeholder feedback as well as state and local data: 

 An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus on is the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs for 
teachers to meet with families and students to discuss student progress and ways to work together to support improved student 
outcomes. To strengthen these relationships teachers will be encouraged to reach out to parents a minimum of once per quarter. 
Currently, the goal is to call parents to share positive messages. 

 An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus is the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of staff (i.e. 
administrators, teachers, and classified staff) to build trusting and respectful relationships with families. To strengthen these 
relationships teachers will reach out to parents on a more regular basis. Currently, the goal is to call parents to share positive 
messages. 

86

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsIdentifiedNeed


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 4 of 52

 An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus on is the LEA’s progress in providing all families with opportunities 
to provide input on policies and programs and implementing strategies to reach and seek input from any underrepresented groups 
in the school community. Our goal is to explore other ways to reach out to parents to attend engagement meetings. Tapping into 
community groups as a way to better reach out to families would be a way to explore and solicit feedback. 

The Kings County Office of Education is eligible for DA for Low-Income students in the areas of Chronic absenteeism, Graduation Rate, and 
College/Career. As a district, we have analyzed local and state data completed a systems analysis and systems map, engaged in a root 
cause analysis, working on a driver diagram, and have begun to develop plans for our PDSA cycle. Through state CISC leadership, we have 
learned of the forthcoming State Performance Plan Indicator (SPPI) Resource Guide being developed by the State System of Support 
SELPA leads and of the work to update the existing CCSESA Improving Performance of Students with Disabilities Handbook to better align 
with continuous improvement efforts in place. We intend to draw upon these resources for the development and implementation of steps to 
address the areas with the greatest need for improvement 
 

 
 

LCAP Highlights 
 

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 
 

Following is a brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized: 
The overall focus of this new LCAP will be on social-emotional and mental well-being in an effort to support academic achievement and pupil 
engagement. We have experienced fluctuating enrollment for the past several years, however, we have continued to decline in enrollment, 
especially due to the health and safety concerns brought about by the pandemic. Due to the declining enrollment at J.C. Montgomery school, 
many of our state data points have not shown student information as "data not displayed for privacy." These missing data points include the 
CAASPP, ELPAC, and ELPI. In order to provide a comprehensive needs assessment, we have added local data sources, as much as 
possible, without exposing student information. Upon entry into our instructional programs, student transcripts are evaluated. Students are 
placed into courses based on their progress towards meeting graduation requirements. We continue to provide a variety of courses via our 
credit recovery program. This allows virtual access to a wide range of courses within a singular classroom. The in-person courses are taught 
by a limited number of teaching staff, which is based on student enrollment. The increase in course offerings through Edgenuity has allowed 
students to obtain more credits based on student achievement rather than a time-based model. We are also limited in our ability to offer a 
variety of physical education activities and science laboratories based on our facilities and access to physical space. We continue to work 
with our agency partners to provide opportunities for students that increase access to a broad course of study. 
 
Shelly Baird is the Kings County Special Education school. In the past, Shelly Baird's data was reported on the County Dashboard, however, 
now all student data will be returned to the student's school of origin, and as such, they are not reflected in our LCAP. 
         

 

87

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#LCAPHighlights


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 5 of 52

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 
Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 

88

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ComprehensiveSupportandImprovement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 6 of 52

Stakeholder Engagement 
 
 

A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.  
 

Kings County Office of Education has made continuous efforts to solicit stakeholder feedback and is committed to the idea that meaningful 
stakeholder engagement is an integral part of developing effective plans. As such, the Kings County Office of Education used a variety of 
meetings and activities to involve stakeholders in the 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan process including the discussion and review 
of district data, possible areas of focus, and proposed actions and services. The following stakeholders were actively involved in the 2021 
Local Control and Accountability Plan development process: students, teachers/staff, parents, community, bargaining units (to include 
certificated and classified personnel), district administration/site principals, School Site Councils (including parents, teachers/staff and 
administration), site English learner committees (including parents, teachers/staff and administration), and the Special Education Local Plan 
Area (SELPA). Our School Site Council (SSC) functions as our Parent Advisory Council. 
 
J.C. Montgomery provided surveys in August 2020 to parents, students, and staff. The survey was provided electronically to staff and 
students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents were mailed home. Reminders were sent via Blackboard and social media in their 
system-identified languages. Follow-up calls were made to parents to solicit further input verbally. Community input was solicited during a 
public hearing. Bargaining units met in person to provide input. Kings County Office of Education district administration, the site principal, and 
the SELPA director collaborated virtually and in person regarding the Learning Continuity Attendance Plan July 2020, August 2020, and 
September 2020. As such, this feedback was also used to develop this plan. The collaboration continued on a monthly basis throughout the 
remainder of the 2020-2021 school year. The School Site Council held a hybrid meeting where attendees were able to provide input in 
person or via Zoom. English learner committee feedback was obtained prior to the School Site Council meeting times. Stakeholder 
engagement was considered as we collaboratively reviewed the most recent state and local data and identified the root causes behind 
equitable access. The options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings surrounding the 2021 Local Control 
and Accountability Plan process included the opportunity for stakeholders to join meetings via Zoom and by telephone. Conditions were all 
based on safe meeting practices as suggested by the local health department. 
 
The School Site Council meetings were scheduled quarterly (September, November, January, and May). English learner representatives 
were invited to attend these meetings to provide input and translation services were provided. These meetings were hybrid (if health 
restrictions allow) so that attendees could participate virtually or in person. J.C. Montgomery provided surveys in January and April for 
parents, students, and staff. The surveys were provided electronically to staff and students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents were 
mailed home and/or parents were personally contacted in an effort to solicit feedback. Reminders were sent via Blackboard and social media 
in their system-identified languages. Community input was solicited during a public hearing. Bargaining units met in person to provide input 
and were also a part of the survey efforts. Kings County Office of Education district administration, the site principal, and the SELPA director 
collaborated virtually and in person regarding the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan throughout April and May. Again, this 
information was also used to inform the 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan. 
 
The Local Indicator self-assessment was also completed and reviewed to identify possible areas of growth that could be supported through 
the goals and actions of the 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan. 

89

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#StakeholderEngagement


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 7 of 52

         
 
A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups. 
 

A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups, listed below, surrounding the 2021 Local Control and Accountability 
Plan was as follows: 
 
1) Students: 
Data collected via discussions, surveys, and SSC meetings.  Kings County Court School: J.C. Montgomery- Student survey data reveals that 
54% of students feel connected to the school and staff. 61% of students feel that the school provides social and emotional support. Students 
listed ideas to increase school engagement and academic success: more access to a wide range of classes and individualized assistance, 
additional counseling, mental health strategies, and access to music. 92% of students felt that being Western Association of Schools and 
College accredited is helpful to the school. In-School Site Council meeting, one student said the digital story project was exciting because 
they had always wanted to write their life story down on paper and this opportunity would give them a place to start. A second student said 
that the speakers who are coming will have an impact on the students, inspire their imagination, and make them want to be somebody. 
 
2) Teachers and Staff: 
Data collected via discussions, surveys, and ELAC/SSC meetings. Kings County Court School: J.C. Montgomery- 100% of staff surveyed 
feel that being Western Association of Schools and Colleges accredited is helpful to the school. 100% of staff members feel connected to 
students. 67% of staff feel that the site has high expectations of students and that the courses offered are only somewhat challenging. 67% 
of staff members feel that communication between the school and parents or guardians is slightly or somewhat effective. 
 
3) Parents: 
Data collected via discussions, surveys, and ELAC/SSC meetings. Kings County Court School: J.C. Montgomery- 83% of parents report that 
the school has high expectations for students. 83% of parents feel that becoming Western Association of Schools and Colleges accredited is 
helpful to the school. 67% of parents feel the school is very supportive of students' social and emotional needs. 83% of parents feel that the 
communication from school to parents or guardians is very effective. 
 
4) Community: The 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan was presented at a public hearing meeting. Community members 
commented __________________________.  The 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan was also taken for input by both J.C. 
Montgomery and Shelly Baird School Site Councils.  Members commented ________________________________. At previous School Site 
Council meetings: 1) a student member commented that they had always wanted the opportunity to put their life down on paper and are 
excited to take part in the digital storytelling project. 2) An English learner committee member shared that her child enjoys school at J.C. 
Montgomery more than they did at their past school. 3) A teacher member stated that the materials being purchased will lead to stronger 
teachers and better lessons. WE WILL ADD COMMUNITY PUBLIC HEARING FEEDBACK HERE 
 
5) Bargaining Unit: Representatives from both the Certificated and Classified County office units felt continued and enhanced health and 
safety procedures regarding the COVID-19 pandemic were needed. Flexible working arrangements were requested. Wellness checks were 
also requested by members for both employees and students. 

90



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 8 of 52

 
6) District Administration and Site Principal: 
During collaborative meetings, the importance to address the social-emotional needs of students, parents, and staff was stressed. Input from 
students, staff, community members, bargaining units, the School Site Council, the English learner committee, and the SELPA were 
discussed and utilized to determine the action items for this plan. District Administration and Site Principal agree, based on English learn 
reclassification and other associated data, that support strategies for English Learners will be included. 
 
7) SELPA: 
Meetings were held between the district administration, the site principal, and the SELPA director to align the 2021 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan with special education requirements and expected outcomes. The SELPA director also held meetings and communicated 
through email with J.C. Montgomery's special education teaching staff to provide support for individual student needs. 
         

 
A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input. 
 

A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input was as follows: 
1) Goal 1, Action 1, contains staff support to focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student 
achievement,  as requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
2) Goal 1, Action 2, contains support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional assistance in scaffolding academic content, as 
requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
3) Goal 1, Action 3, contains professional development to train staff in appropriate instructional/language acquisition strategies and social-
emotional support for English Learners. 
4) Goal 1, Action 4 contains the WASC and Curriculum support requested by parents, staff, and students. 
5) Goal 1, Action 6, contains the special education support as suggested by the SELPA. 
6) A focus on social-emotional support can be seen heavily throughout the plan and more specifically, Goal 1 (Action 5) and weaved within 
all of Goal 2, as requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
7) Although the enhanced health and safety procedures were not funded through the 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan, we will 
continue with these processes and procedures as needed and requested by the Bargaining Unit. 
 
WE WILL ADD COMMUNITY INFLUENCES HERE 
         

 

91



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 9 of 52

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
1 Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. 

 
State Priorities: Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning); Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning); Priority 4: 
Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes); Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement); Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions 
of Learning); Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Office of Education has chosen to prioritize this goal due to the following: 
1) Stakeholders have provided feedback requesting that Students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials, 100% fully 
credentialed teachers, and 100% appropriately assigned teachers. 
2) We are seeking to increase local iReady benchmarks which show 45% of students showing growth in ELA and 35.8% of students showing 
growth in Math. 
3) We are seeking to decrease High School dropout rates which show 52.94%. 
4) We are seeking to increase High School graduation rates which show 29.41%. 
5) We are seeking to increase the access to electives based on the current student elective participation showing 12 classes. 
6) We are seeking to maintain - Full Implementation and Sustainability in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying 
areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks for the following 
subject areas: ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards), Mathematics – Common Core State 
Standards for Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. As well as increase History-Social Science from Full Implementation to Full 
Implementation and Sustainability. 
Stakeholders have participated in surveys and meetings where they have been asked to provide input to both solidify initial findings and 
thoughts regarding areas of importance. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Priority 1: Basic 
Services (Conditions 
of Learning) 

A1. 100% of teachers 
are appropriately 
assigned 

   A1. 100% of teachers 
are appropriately 
assigned 

92

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 10 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

A. Appropriately 
Assigned & 
Credentialed 
Teachers 
 
B. Instructional 
Materials 
 
C. School Repairs 
        

A2. 100% of teachers 
are fully credentialed 
 
B. 100% sufficient 
access to standards-
aligned materials 
 
C. Exemplary rating 
on the FIT 
 
(SARC 2019-2020) 
 

A2. 100% of teachers 
are fully credentialed 
 
B. 100% sufficient 
access to standards-
aligned materials 
 
C. Exemplary rating 
on the FIT 
 

Priority 2: State 
Standards (Conditions 
of Learning) 
A. Implementation of 
academic content and 
performance 
standards 
 
B. How the programs 
and services will 
enable English 
learners to access the 
CCSS and the ELD 
standards for 
purposes of gaining 
academic content 
knowledge and 
English language 
proficiency 
        

A. local benchmarks: 
(iReady 2020) 
1) ELA: 45% of 
students showing 
growth 
2) Math: 35.8% of 
students showing 
growth 
3) Status of Met on 
2021 LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 1 
 
B. English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI): 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 11.1% 
making progress 
towards English 
language proficiency 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
Less than 11 students 

   A. Local benchmarks: 
(iReady) 
1) ELA: Increase to 
55% of students will 
show growth 
2) Math: Increase to 
45% of students will 
show growth 
3) Status of Met on 
2021 LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 1 
 
B. English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI): 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
Designated ELD class 

93



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 11 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

- data not displayed 
for privacy.  As such, 
we will be using 
Designated ELD class 
enrollment: 100% of 
EL students enrolled 
(CA Dashboard 2019) 
 

enrollment: 100% of 
EL students enrolled 
 

Priority 4: Pupil 
Achievement (Pupil 
Outcomes) 
A. Statewide 
assessments 
 
B. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
entrance to the 
University of California 
and the California 
State University 
 
C. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences 
or programs of study 
that align with 

A. CAASPP: (CA 
Dashboard 2019) 
1) ELA: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
1) Math: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
As such, we will be 
using iReady data: 
1) ELA: 45% of 
students showing 
growth 
2) Math: 35.8% of 
students showing 
growth 
 
B. Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
(CA Dashboard 2019 - 
CCI Indicator) 
As such, we will be 
using Edgenuity data: 
20% of students 
completed A-G 
Courses 
 

   A. CAASPP: 
1) ELA: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
2) Math: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
As such, we will be 
using iReady data: 
1) ELA: Increase to 
55% of students 
showing growth 
2) Math: Increase to 
45% of students 
showing growth 
 
B. 40% of students 
who will complete A-G 
Courses 
 
C. 5% of pupils will 
successfully complete 
courses that satisfy 
the requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences 
 

94



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 12 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

SBE-approved career 
technical education 
standards and 
frameworks 
 
D. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed both types 
of courses described 
in subparagraphs (B) 
and (C) 
 
E. Percentage of 
English learners who 
make progress toward 
English proficiency as 
measured by the 
ELPAC 
 
F. The English learner 
reclassification rate 
 
G. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
passed an advanced 
placement exam with 
a score of “3” or 
higher 
 
H. The percentage of 
pupils who participate 
in, and demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 

C. 0% of pupils have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences. 
This is not in place yet 
 
D. 0% percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed both (B) 
and (C) 
 
E. ELPAC (DataQuest 
2018-19) 
In order to protect 
student privacy, data 
is suppressed 
because 10 or fewer 
students tested 
As such, we will use 
Designated ELD GPA: 
3.33/ B+ 
 
F. Reclassification 
Rate: (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 27 (56.2 
%) 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 0 
(0.0 %) (Total # of 
Enrolled ELs=3) 
 

D. 5% percentage of 
pupils will successfully 
complete both (B) and 
(C) 
 
E. Designated ELD 
GPA: 3.66/A- 
 
F. Reclassification 
Rate: (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
0% 
 
G. 0% of pupils who 
have passed an 
advanced placement 
exam with a score of 
“3” or higher 
 
H. 0% demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
students do not have 
access to EAP 
 

95



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 13 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

 
        

G. 0% of pupils who 
have passed an 
advanced placement 
exam with a score of 
“3” or higher 
(DataQuest 2018-19) 
 
H. 0% demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
(EAP) 
(DataQuest 2018-19) 
 

Priority 5: Pupil 
Engagement 
(Engagement) 
A. School attendance 
rates 
 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates 
 
C. Middle school 
dropout rates 
 
D. High school 
dropout rates 
 
E. High school 
graduation rates 
        

A. School attendance 
rates: (Aeries) 
JCM: 95.07% from 
7/1/2019-2/7/2020 
 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates 
(CA Dashboard 2019-
20) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 

 All students: 
Red, 51.2% 
Chronically 
absent, 
increased by 
4.1%, Very 
High 

 Low-income: 
Red, 50% 
Chronically 
absent, 

   A. School attendance 
rates:  
JCM: 97% 
 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin  
2) J.C. Montgomery: 

 All students: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 Low-income: 
Less than 11 
students - 

96



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 14 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

increased by 
2.4%, Very 
High 

 students with 
Disabilities: 
Red, 51.6% 
Chronically 
absent, 
increased by 
3.4%, Very 
High 

2) J.C. Montgomery: 
 All students: 

Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 Low-income: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 students with 
Disabilities: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 
C. Middle school 

data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 students with 
Disabilities: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

*students who are 
incarcerated are 
required to attend 
school 
 
C. Middle school 
dropout rate: 
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Total Served = 0% 
 
D. High School 
dropout rates:  
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Total Served = 45% 
 
E. High School 
graduation rates: 
(CBEDS) 
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Seniors on CBEDS = 
40% 
 

97



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 15 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

dropout rate 
J.C. Montgomery: 0/1 
Total Served = 0% 
 
D. High School 
dropout rates: 
(CALPADS) 
J.C. Montgomery: 
9/17 Total Served = 
52.94% 
 
E. High School 
graduation rates: 
(CBEDS) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 6/35 
Seniors on CBEDS = 
17.14% 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
5/17 Seniors on 
CBEDS = 29.41% 
 

Priority 7: Course 
Access (Conditions of 
Learning): 
The extent to which 
pupils have access to 
and are enrolled in: 
A. A broad course of 
study 
B. Programs and 
services developed 
and provided to 
unduplicated pupils 
C. Programs and 
services developed 

A. 100% of students 
have course access 
 
B. 100% of 
unduplicated pupils 
have course access 
and access to 
services 
 
C. 100% of students 
with disabilities have 
course access and 
access to services 
 

   A. 100% of students 
will have course 
access 
 
B. 100% of 
unduplicated pupils 
will have course 
access and access to 
services 
 
C) 100% of individuals 
students with 
disabilities will have 

98



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 16 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

and provided to 
students with 
disabilities 
        

(Local Indicators 
2020-21) 
 

course access and 
access to services 
 

Priority 8: Other Pupil 
Outcomes 
Course completion: 
Foreign Language, 
Applied Arts, Career 
Technical Education 
        

students participated 
in 12 elective courses 
from 7/2020 through 
5/2021 

   students will 
participate in 15 
elective courses from 
7/2023 through 
5/2024 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 

1 Staff Support        Staff support to focus on student basic needs for engagement and 
maintain high expectations for student achievement. Included in this 
activity are indirect costs totaling $9,997. 
Priority 1: Basic Services (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
 
 
 

$134,644.00 
 

X 
 Yes     

2 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I N & D)        

Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional 
assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is 
professional development to train staff in appropriate instructional and 
social-emotional support strategies. Co-op contract to support plan 
administration and federal program review. Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $12,879. (Title 1 N & D) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 

$173,466.00 
 
 

Low-income No      

99

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 17 of 52

Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 

3 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I Part A)        

Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional 
assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is 
professional development to train staff in appropriate 
instructional/language acquisition strategies and social-emotional 
support for English Learners. Co-op contract to support plan 
administration and federal program review.  Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $1,003. (Title 1 Part A) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$13,504.00 
 
 

English Learner No      

4 Curriculum Support        Curriculum Support to include, but not limited to: 
 Online Licenses 
 KCOE MOU Lesson Design 
 Curriculum adoption/replacement 
 Edgenuity 
 WASC Renewal Fee 

Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $1,185. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)  
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes  
 
 
 

$15,966.00 
 

X 
 Yes     

5 Professional Growth 
and Data 
Dissemination 
Support        

Professional growth opportunities and data dissemination support to 
assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional needs of 
students.  Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $265. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 

$3,565.00 
 

X 
 Yes     

100



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 18 of 52

Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 

6 RSP Support        Resource Specialist Program support contract (MOU) for training to 
assist students who have an Individualized Educational Plan (IEP) in 
place. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $401. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
 
 
 

$5,401.00 
 

X 
 No      

12          
 
 

 
 
 
 No      

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 

101

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 19 of 52

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
2 Provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social-emotional and mental health 

issues of our students. While strengthening parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and success of students. 
 
State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Office of Education has chosen to prioritize this goal due to the following: 
1) We are seeking to increase parent feedback and participation as seen in the following baseline metric: 44.4% participation by all 
Parent/Guardians on the 2020 Spring LCAP Survey. 
2) We are seeking to decrease student suspension for all students and low-income students: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, increased 
0.3%, Very High. 
3) We are seeking to increase or maintain the following survey feedback results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness: A) Increase - 
Pupils: 68.5% Feel Safe & 47.4% Feel Connected; B) Increase - Parents: 93.8% Feel Safe & 93.8% Feel Connected; C) Maintain - Teachers: 
100% Feel School Safe & 100% Feel Connected via collaboration. 
Stakeholders have participated in surveys and meetings where they have been asked to provide input to both solidify initial findings and 
thoughts regarding areas of importance. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

State Priorities: 
Priority 3: Parental 
Involvement 
(Engagement) 
A. The efforts the 
school district makes 
to seek parent input in 
making decisions for 
the school district and 

A. 44.4% participation 
by all 
Parent/Guardians on 
the 2020 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
B. 44.4% participation 
by Parent/Guardian of 
unduplicated pupils on 

   A. 65% participation 
by all 
Parent/Guardians on 
the LCAP Survey 
 
B. 65% participation 
by Parent/Guardian of 
unduplicated pupils on 
LCAP Survey 

102

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 20 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

each individual school 
site 
 
B. How the school 
district will promote 
parental participation 
in programs for 
unduplicated pupils 
 
C. How the school 
district will promote 
parental participation 
in programs for 
students with 
disabilities 
        

2020 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
C. 100% 
Parent/Guardian 
participation in IEPs 
 
A. B. and C.Status of 
Met on 2021 LCAP 
Local Performance 
Indicator Self-
Reflection, Priority 3 
 

 
C. 100% of 
Parent/Guardian will 
participate in IEPs 
 
A. B. and C. Status of 
Met on 2021 LCAP 
Local Performance 
Indicator Self-
Reflection, Priority 3 
 

Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
A. Pupil Suspension 
rate 
 
B. Pupil Expulsion 
rate 
 
C. Other local 
measures, including 
surveys of pupils, 
parents, and teachers 
on the sense of safety 
and school 
connectedness 
        

A. % Suspended (CA 
Dashboard 2019) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 

 All Students: 
Red, 9.3% 
suspended at 
least once, 
maintained 
0.2%, Very 
High 

 Hispanic: 
Orange, 
7.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
maintained 
0.2%, Very 
High 

   A. % Suspended  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 
*All Shelly Baird data 
will return to the 
school of origin. 
2) J.C.Montgomery: 

 All Students: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

 Hispanic: 
3.5% 
suspended at 
least once 

 Low Income: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

103



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 21 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

 Low Income: 
Orange, 
9.6% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
1.3%, Very 
High 

 English 
Learner: 
Green, 3.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
1.2%, Low 

 Students with 
Disabilities: 
Orange, 9% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
0.4%, Very 
High 

2) J.C.Montgomery: 
 All Students: 

Red, 10.1% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
0.3%, Very 
High 

 Hispanic: 
Orange, 
9.8% 
suspended at 
least once, 

 English 
Learner: 3% 
suspended at 
least once 

 Students with 
Disabilities: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

 
B. % Expelled  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 0% 
2) J.C.Montgomery: 
0% 
 
C. Sense of Safety 
and School 
Connectedness 
1) Pupils:  
75% Feel Safe 
65% Feel Connected 
2) Parents:  
95% Feel Safe 
95% Feel Connected 
3) Teachers: 
100% Feel School 
Safe 
100% Feel Connected 
via collaboration 
 

104



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 22 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

increased 
0.8%, High 

 Low Income: 
Red, 10.1% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
0.3%, Very 
High 

 English 
Learner: 
Yellow, 9.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
2.4%, High 

 Students with 
Disabilities: 
Yellow, 9.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
6.8%, High 

 
B. % Expelled 
(DataQuest 2019-20) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 0% 
2) J.C.Montgomery: 
0% 
 
C. Sense of Safety 
and School 
Connectedness 
1) Pupils:  
68.5% Feel Safe 

105



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 23 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

47.4% Feel 
Connected 
2) Parents:  
93.8% Feel Safe 
93.8% Feel 
Connected 
3) Teachers: 
100% Feel School 
Safe 
100% Feel Connected 
via collaboration 
 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 

1 Social-Emotional 
Support        

Lesson creation assistance in the form of consulting to build an 
engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support 
students. This action includes student incentives and instructional 
supplies. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $2,632. 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$35,447.00 
 

X 
 Yes     

2 Trauma-Informed 
Training (Title II Part 
A)        

Trauma-informed training is provided to support teachers in helping 
students build coping skills, self-efficacy and strengthen student-staff 
relationships. Supplies are built into the memorandum of 
understanding (MOU). (Title II Part A) Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $92. 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$1,233.00 
X 
 

Including English 
Learners, Low-

Income, and Foster 
Youth 

No      

106

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 24 of 52

Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
3 Culturally Responsive 

Teaching (Title I N & 
D)        

Culturally Responsive Teaching training and activities will be provided 
for both teachers and parents to help them to recognize the 
importance of including students' cultural references in all aspects of 
learning. (Title I N & D) Included in this activity are indirect costs 
totaling $1,123. 
Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$15,123.00 
X 
 
 No      

4 Parent Engagement        Parent engagement opportunities to strengthen communication with 
parents and provide support in the form of parent education and/or 
supplies for meetings. Included in this activity are indirect costs 
totaling $96. 
Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$1,296.00 
 

X 
 Yes     

5 Homeless Set Aside 
(Title I Part A)        

Homeless set aside to ensure that services are provided to students 
who are experiencing homelessness. (Title I Part A) 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$200.00 
 
 

Students 
Experiencing 

Homelessness No      

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 

107

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 25 of 52

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 

108



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 26 of 52

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
3 Coordinate high-quality educational programs and services for Kings County Foster & Expelled youth 

 
State Priorities: Priority 9: Expelled Pupils (Conditions of Learning) & Priority 10: Foster Youth (Conditions of Learning) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Foster Youth Coordinating Services Program (FYSCP) needs to assist district and county health and human services agencies 
in ensuring that foster youth receive the necessary support and information to graduate and obtain and complete post-secondary education. 
The high mobility of foster youth makes it imperative that the FYSCP established county-wide policies and procedures that address school 
stability and the immediate enrollment of foster youth. There is a need to share information, coordinate the transfer of health and education 
records between districts and other county agencies, and respond to the needs of the juvenile court system.  Kings County needs to support 
the district through the coordinator of services for expelled youth in the county. Data shows that the three greatest areas of need for foster 
youth in Kings County are to increase the operational capacity of LEA site liaisons, improve academic engagement and school conditions 
and climate, and increase graduation rates and college and career readiness for foster youth students. Kings County needs to support 
districts through the coordination of services for expelled youth in the county.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Priority 9: Expelled 
Pupils (Conditions of 
Learning) Addresses 
how the county 
superintendent of 
schools will coordinate 
instruction of expelled 
pupils        

Status of Met on 2021 
LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 9: 
Developing a 
memorandum of 
understanding 
regarding the 
coordination of partial 
credit policies 
between the district of 

   Status of Met on 2021 
LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 9: 
Developing a 
memorandum of 
understanding 
regarding the 
coordination of partial 
credit policies 
between the district of 

109

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 27 of 52

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

residence and the 
county office of 
education. 
1 – Exploration and 
Research Phase 
 

residence and the 
county office of 
education. 
3 – Initial 
Implementation 
 

Priority 10: Foster 
Youth (Conditions of 
Learning) 
A.and C.  FYSCP will 
work alongside the 
county child welfare 
agency and juvenile 
court to minimize the 
changes in school 
placement, delivery, 
and coordination of 
educational services. 
 
B and D.  Provide 
educational-related 
information to county 
child welfare agency 
to assist in the 
delivery of services 
utilizing the Foster 
Focus Data System 
as the efficient and 
expeditious 
mechanism for the 
transfer of health and 
education records 
        

A.and C. 
1) 21.9% of Foster 
Youth were 
chronically absent in 
2019-2020 
2) 47.8% of Foster 
Youth graduated in 
2019-2020 
3)12.3% of Foster 
Youth were 
suspended in 2019-
2020 
 
B and D. 
85% of district/site 
liaisons and child 
welfare services are 
trained on the Foster 
Focus Data System. 
 

   A.and C. 
1) Decrease the 
chronic absenteeism 
rate of Foster Youth 
by 8% 
2) Increase the 
graduation rate of 
Foster Youth by 10%. 
3) Decrease the 
suspension rate of 
Foster Youth by 5%. 
 
B and D. 
100% of district/site 
liaisons and child 
welfare services will 
be trained on the 
Foster Focus Data 
System. 
 

 

Actions 
 

110

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 28 of 52

Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Transfer of 

Educational Records, 
Case Management, 
and School Stability        

Foster Youth Liaison and Educational Learning Advisors will evaluate 
academic credit completion and review transcripts for transitional-aged 
Foster Youth students. The Advisors will work with the Independent 
Living Program (ILP) to review credits, present information, assist with 
financial aid applications, and records for student transfers. The 
Advisors will work directly with JC Montgomery in order to provide 
transitional services for district Foster Youth. This position also serves 
as the contact for questions regarding Foster Youth for Kings County 
school districts and; school sites, and; assisted with student records 
requests and; transmittals. The Liaison will connect Educational 
resources for Foster Youth of all ages through programs to all LEA’s 
within the County. Ensure school stability, immediate enrollment, and 
transfer of credits received for newly enrolled students. Provide 
technical assistance to LEA’s and Health and Human Services on 
reading and analyzing transcripts for AB490/AB167 credit reduction 
requirements. Assist students in completing the FAFSA by the March 
2 deadline by conducting two student workshops, following up with 
individual students to ensure the process is complete and facilitating 
the development of a mechanism for tracking FAFSA completions. 
Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $15,708. 
 
 

$211,568.00 
 
 

County-Wide Foster 
Youth No      

2 Foster Focus        The FYSCP will continue to utilize the Foster Focus system for the 
data management of Foster Youth. Weekly updates taken from the 
CalPads 5.7 report provide the Kings County Foster Focus system a 
means to further the benefits of the Foster Focus system. The FYSCP 
will maintain an MOU with 6 districts currently linked and Health and 
Human Services. FYSCP will reach out to districts that are not linked 
and provide support to enable those LEA’s to link to the Foster Focus 
System. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $1,604. 
 
 

$21,604.00 
 
 

County-Wide Foster 
Youth No      

3 Ongoing 
collaboration with all 
stakeholders and 
Facilitation of 

Ensure the coordination of educational services for foster youth by 
facilitating quarterly Kings County Executive Advisory Council which 
includes LEA’s, Department of Social Services, Probation, and other 
community stakeholders for the planning and development of capacity 

$2,484.00 
 
 

County-Wide Foster 
Youth No      

111



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 29 of 52

Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
Education Advisory 
Council        

building and training opportunities. Included in this activity are indirect 
costs totaling $184. 
 
 

4 Build Capacity with 
LEA’s, Health and 
Human Services, and 
FYSCP Staff.        

Build capacity with LEA, probation, child welfare, and other 
organizations by providing professional learning opportunities for the 
purposes of implementing school-based support systems for foster 
youth intended to improve educational outcomes. Training could 
include Trauma-informed practices, alternatives to suspension, 
student re-engagement, and legislative updates. FYSCP staff will 
participate in professional learning provided by local, regional, state, 
and national organizations to build their capacity to better serve LEA’s 
and Health and Human Services. Included in this activity are indirect 
costs totaling $3,496. 
 
 

$47,087.00 
 
 

County-Wide Foster 
Youth No      

5 Expelled Youth Plan 
Administrator        

5% Administrative costs to implement and update countywide plans 
for providing educational services to all expelled pupils. Included in 
this activity are indirect costs totaling $710. 
 
 

$9,564.00 
 
 

County-Wide 
Expelled Youth No      

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 

112

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 30 of 52

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 

113



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 31 of 52

 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2021-22] 
 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  

3.25% $162,970         
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Increased or Improved Services Expenditures 
Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 
 

Following is a description of how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is principally 
directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils: 
 
Goal 1, Action 1: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our foster youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), 
English learners (3 students (15.8 %)), and low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) Local iReady benchmarks show 45% of 
unduplicated students have shown growth in ELA and 35.8% of unduplicated students have shown growth in Math, 2) High School dropout 
rates for unduplicated students show 52.94%, and 3) High School graduation rates show 29.41% for unduplicated students. In order to 
address this condition of our foster youth, English Learners, and low-income students, we will provide staff support to focus on student basic 
needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. We will use this staff to target and monitor individual needs 
in ELA and Math, to increased Graduation rates, and decrease dropout rates. The theory to support a focus on student basic needs for 
engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement is in accordance with, articles from the Institute of Education Sciences 
(IES) which states: "Preventing Dropout in Secondary Schools (2017) - This What Works Clearinghouse practice guide is an excellent 
introduction to research on evidence-based strategies. It provides examples of and suggestions for implementing four recommendations to 
reduce dropout rates and improve high school graduation rates: 
"Monitor the progress of all students, and proactively intervene when students show early signs of attendance, behavior, or academic 
problems." 
"Provide intensive, individualized support to students who have fallen off track and face significant challenges to success." 
"Engage students by offering curricula and programs that connect schoolwork with college and career success and that improve students' 
capacity to manage challenges in and out of school." 
"For schools with many at-risk students, create small, personalized communities to facilitate monitoring and support." 

114

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 32 of 52

https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp 
 
Goal 1, Action 4: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our foster youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), 
English learners (3 students (15.8 %)), and low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) Stakeholders have provided feedback 
requesting that Students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials, 100% fully credentialed teachers, 100% effective 
teachers, 2) local iReady benchmarks show 45% of unduplicated students have shown growth in ELA and 35.8% of unduplicated students 
have shown growth in Math, 3) High School dropout rates for unduplicated students show 52.94%, 4) High School graduation rates show 
29.41% for unduplicated students, and 5) a need, based on stakeholder feedback, to increase the access to electives based on the current 
student elective participation showing 12 classes. In order to address this condition of our foster youth, English Learners, and low-income 
students, we will provide engaging and rigorous curriculum support to include, but not limited to Online Licenses, KCOE memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) Lesson Design, Curriculum adoption/replacement, Edgenuity, and WASC Renewal Fee. The theory to provide 
engaging and rigorous curriculum support, is again, in accordance with, articles from the Institute of Education Sciences (IES) which states: 
"Preventing Dropout in Secondary Schools (2017) - This What Works Clearinghouse practice guide is an excellent introduction to research 
on evidence-based strategies. It provides examples of and suggestions for implementing four recommendations to reduce dropout rates and 
improve high school graduation rates: 
"Monitor the progress of all students, and proactively intervene when students show early signs of attendance, behavior, or academic 
problems." 
"Provide intensive, individualized support to students who have fallen off track and face significant challenges to success." 
"Engage students by offering curricula and programs that connect schoolwork with college and career success and that improve students' 
capacity to manage challenges in and out of school." 
"For schools with many at-risk students, create small, personalized communities to facilitate monitoring and support." 
https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp 
Additionally, the push to re-engage students was based on the theory from Education Policy Brief on Improving High School Graduation 
Rates, which stated, "A majority of students responding to the HSSSE survey said that they were bored at least once every day. A total of 
75 percent of respondents said that the material they are learning in high school is not interesting and 39 percent said it was not relevant to 
them. Students overwhelmingly indicated preferences for interactive learning methods that run contrary to traditional lecture-style 
classrooms. At the end of the HSSSE survey, when the students are presented with an open-ended question, many students felt as if their 
comments and suggestions would go unheard and/or be ignored. Recommendation: It is impossible to improve student satisfaction in 
education without listening to students first. Student input should be highly regarded and responses should be formed accordingly. Despite 
prevalent stereotypes, most students in surveys have indicated a desire for more challenging academic work." 
https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED503864.pdf 
 
Goal 1, Action 5: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our foster youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), 
English learners (3 students (15.8 %)), and low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) Stakeholders have provided feedback 
requesting that students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials and 100% fully credentialed teachers, and 2) local iReady 
benchmarks show 45% of unduplicated students have shown growth in ELA and 35.8% of unduplicated students have shown growth in 
Math. In order to address this condition of our foster youth, English Learners, and low-income students, we will provide professional growth 
opportunities and data dissemination support to assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional needs of students. The theory to 
provide professional growth opportunities and data dissemination support to assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional 

115

https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp
https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp
https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED503864.pdf


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 33 of 52

needs of students is in accordance with, articles from the Institute of Education Sciences (IES) which state: "Preventing Dropout in 
Secondary Schools (2017) - This What Works Clearinghouse practice guide is an excellent introduction to research on evidence-based 
strategies. It provides examples of and suggestions for implementing four recommendations to reduce dropout rates and improve high 
school graduation rates: 
"Monitor the progress of all students, and proactively intervene when students show early signs of attendance, behavior, or academic 
problems." 
"Provide intensive, individualized support to students who have fallen off track and face significant challenges to success." 
"Engage students by offering curricula and programs that connect schoolwork with college and career success and that improve students' 
capacity to manage challenges in and out of school." 
"For schools with many at-risk students, create small, personalized communities to facilitate monitoring and support." 
https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp 
Additionally, a second theory to provide this action/support is in accordance with an article from the National Dropout Prevention 
Center/Network, which states: The connection between trauma and school dropout is evident. The symptoms of traumatic stress described 
above are very closely related to commonly identified dropout risk factors. Specifically, students are more likely to drop out of school when 
they have or display learning challenges, low academic achievement, emotional disturbances, disengagement, and or truancy 
(Hammond, Linton, Smink, & Drew, 2007)—all potential symptoms of trauma. Also, data show that children who have experienced trauma 
drop out of school at a significantly higher rate (19.79 %) than those who have not experienced trauma (12.97%; Porche, Fortuna, Lin, & 
Alegria, 2011). " http://www.dropoutprevention.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/dropout-prevention-and-trauma-2017-10.pdf 
 
Goal 2, Action 1: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our foster youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), 
English learners (3 students (15.8 %)), and low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) student suspension for all students and 
low-income students: Red, 10.1% suspended at least once, increased 0.3%, Very High. 2) survey feedback results were as follows: Sense 
of Safety and School Connectedness 1) Pupils: 68.5% Feel Safe & 47.4% Feel Connected; 2) Parents: 93.8% Feel Safe & 93.8% Feel 
Connected; 3) Teachers: 100% Feel School Safe & 100% Feel Connected via collaboration. In order to address this condition for our foster 
youth, English Learners, and low-income students, we will provide Social-Emotional Support to include lesson creation assistance in the 
form of consulting to build an engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support students. This action includes student incentives 
and instructional supplies. The theory to provide an engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support students is in accordance 
with, articles surrounding Social and Emotional Learning and Equity in School Discipline, which states: "States have also passed legislation 
recognizing that exclusionary discipline fails to create safer school environments and should be used sparingly. For example, California 
Assembly Bill 1729, which took effect in 2013, mandates that suspension should not be the first disciplinary consequence for students. 
According to the bill, “The overuse of school suspension and expulsion undermines the public policy of this state and does not result in 
safer school environments or improved pupil behavior.” This article also reiterated: "State and federal discipline policy reforms aim to reduce 
reliance on suspension. In doing so, they make room for more developmentally appropriate SEL-oriented approaches to behavior" 
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Edward-
Fergus/publication/319482587_Social_and_Emotional_Learning_and_Equity_in_School_Discipline/links/5a455615a6fdcce1971a59f8/Socia
l-and-Emotional-Learning-and-Equity-in-School-Discipline.pdf 
 
Goal 2, Action 4: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our foster youth (16 students in 19-20 (most recent data)), 
English learners (3 students (15.8 %)), and low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) parent feedback and participation as 

116

https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/northwest/news/improve-grad-rates.asp
http://www.dropoutprevention.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/dropout-prevention-and-trauma-2017-10.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Edward-Fergus/publication/319482587_Social_and_Emotional_Learning_and_Equity_in_School_Discipline/links/5a455615a6fdcce1971a59f8/Social-and-Emotional-Learning-and-Equity-in-School-Discipline.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Edward-Fergus/publication/319482587_Social_and_Emotional_Learning_and_Equity_in_School_Discipline/links/5a455615a6fdcce1971a59f8/Social-and-Emotional-Learning-and-Equity-in-School-Discipline.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Edward-Fergus/publication/319482587_Social_and_Emotional_Learning_and_Equity_in_School_Discipline/links/5a455615a6fdcce1971a59f8/Social-and-Emotional-Learning-and-Equity-in-School-Discipline.pdf


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 34 of 52

seen in the following baseline metric: 44.4% participation by all Parent/Guardians on the 2020 Spring LCAP Survey. 2) survey feedback 
results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness 1)Pupils: 68.5% Feel Safe & 47.4% Feel Connected; 2) Parents: 93.8% Feel Safe & 
93.8% Feel Connected; 3) Teachers: 100% Feel School Safe & 100% Feel Connected via collaboration In order to address this condition for 
our foster youth, English Learners, and low-income students, we will provide Parent engagement opportunities to strengthen communication 
with parents and provide support in the form of parent education and/or supplies for meetings. The importance to strengthen parent 
communication is based on the theory from the CDC, which states: "Parent engagement in schools contributes to students’ health and 
learning. Studies have shown that students who have parents engaged in their school lives are more likely to have, higher grades and test 
scores, better student behavior, and enhanced social skills. In addition, students who have parents engaged in their school lives are less 
likely to smoke cigarettes, drink alcohol, become pregnant, be physically inactive, and be emotionally distressed." 
https://www.cdc.gov/healthyyouth/protective/pdf/parentengagement_teachers.pdf 

 
A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 
 

The Kings County Office of Education (KCOE) Alternative Education program has calculated supplemental and concentration funds to be 
$161,062, based on the number of Low Income, Foster Youth, and English Learners per 5CCR 15496(a)(5). The percentage of students that 
are identifiable as unduplicated at J.C. Montgomery school is 100%. Actions are planned based on the needs of students and stakeholder 
input. We serve incarcerated youth, which is a high-risk student population. Consequently, most of our students suffer credit deficiencies, 
disengagement from school or learning environments, significant instructional gaps, and learning struggles. The academic issues are 
compounded by increased risks of social-emotional health issues, decreased engagement, and drop-out or recidivism rates. We have 
considered the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our unduplicated pupils in the development of this plan. We have worked to provide 
increased and improved services to our highest-need students as the challenges and impact of the pandemic have widened achievement 
and access gaps for our student population. Actions that were implemented in previous years have been analyzed and quality improvements 
have been made based on the identified needs of our students and stakeholder input. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, school districts were 
held harmless to losses in K-12 funding levels. We have continued to have dramatic declines in enrollment at J.C. Montgomery, but we 
ended the 2019-20 year with 51 students. Currently, we have approximately 15 students enrolled. The additional funds we receive this year 
have allowed us to quantitatively grow services for students, staff, and families. We have also been very fortunate to have worked closely 
with our probation department to add student programs, services, and supports that previously would have been limited. We have included 
all actions that are used to contribute to meeting the minimum proportionality, or increased improved services provision, within our 2021 
Local Control and Accountability Plan. All actions were aligned to the areas within the plan, support the contextual need of our students, set 
foundations for the acceleration of learning, and include social-emotional approaches that are evidence-based.         

 

117

https://www.cdc.gov/healthyyouth/protective/pdf/parentengagement_teachers.pdf


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 35 of 52

 
Total Expenditures Table 
 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

$196,319.00         $292,307.00 
 

$203,526.00 $692,152.00 

 

Totals: Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 

Totals:          $489,090.00 $203,062.00 

 
Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

1 1 X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

Staff Support        $134,644.00 
   

$134,644.00 

1 2  Low-income        Support Staff and Instructional 
Supplies (Title I N & D)        

   
$173,466.00 $173,466.00 

1 3  English Learner        Support Staff and Instructional 
Supplies (Title I Part A)        

   
$13,504.00 $13,504.00 

1 4 X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

Curriculum Support        $15,966.00 
   

$15,966.00 

1 5 X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

Professional Growth and Data 
Dissemination Support        

$3,565.00 
   

$3,565.00 

1 6 X Students with 
Disabilities        

RSP Support        $5,401.00 
   

$5,401.00 

2 1 X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

Social-Emotional Support        $35,447.00 
   

$35,447.00 

2 2 X All        
 Including English 

Learners, Low-
Income, and 
Foster Youth        

Trauma-Informed Training (Title II 
Part A)        

   
$1,233.00 $1,233.00 

2 3 X All        Culturally Responsive Teaching 
(Title I N & D)        

   
$15,123.00 $15,123.00 

118



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 36 of 52

Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
2 4 X English Learners        

X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

Parent Engagement        $1,296.00 
   

$1,296.00 

2 5  Students 
Experiencing 
Homelessness        

Homeless Set Aside (Title I Part A)        
   

$200.00 $200.00 

3 1  County-Wide 
Foster Youth        

Transfer of Educational Records, 
Case Management, and School 
Stability        

 
$211,568.00 

  
$211,568.00 

3 2  County-Wide 
Foster Youth        

Foster Focus        
 

$21,604.00 
  

$21,604.00 

3 3  County-Wide 
Foster Youth        

Ongoing collaboration with all 
stakeholders and Facilitation of 
Education Advisory Council        

 
$2,484.00 

  
$2,484.00 

3 4  County-Wide 
Foster Youth        

Build Capacity with LEA’s, Health 
and Human Services, and FYSCP 
Staff.        

 
$47,087.00 

  
$47,087.00 

3 5  County-Wide 
Expelled Youth        

Expelled Youth Plan Administrator        
 

$9,564.00 
  

$9,564.00 

 

119



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 37 of 52

 
Contributing Expenditures Tables 
 

Totals by Type Total LCFF Funds Total Funds 

Total:         $190,918.00 $190,918.00 

LEA-wide Total:         $0.00 $0.00 

Limited Total:         $0.00 $0.00 

Schoolwide Total:         $190,918.00 $190,918.00 
 
 

Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) 

Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 

1 1 Staff Support X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery        

$134,644.00 $134,644.00 

1 4 Curriculum Support X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery        

$15,966.00 $15,966.00 

1 5 Professional Growth 
and Data 
Dissemination 
Support 

X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery        

$3,565.00 $3,565.00 

2 1 Social-Emotional 
Support 

X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery        

$35,447.00 $35,447.00 

2 4 Parent Engagement X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery        

$1,296.00 $1,296.00 

 

120



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 38 of 52

 
Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22] 
 
Annual update of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 
 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's 
Action # Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributed to 
Increased or Improved 

Services? 
Last Year's Total Planned 

Expenditures 
Total Estimated Actual 

Expenditures 

      
 

Totals: Planned Expenditure Total Estimated Actual Total 

Totals:           

 
 

121



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 39 of 52

Instructions 
 
Plan Summary 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires LEAs to engage their local stakeholders in an annual planning process to evaluate their 
progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have ten state priorities). LEAs document the results of this 
planning process in the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

 Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] 52064(e)(1)). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning 
performance data. Local educational agencies (LEAs) should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to 
meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

 Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through meaningful 
stakeholder engagement (EC 52064(e)(1)). Local stakeholders possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs and services. 
Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be included in the 
LCAP. 

 Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
52064(b)(1) & (2)).  

122

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#plansummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#goalsandactions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/21LCAP/Instructions/21LCAPInstructions.htm#increasedimprovedservices
mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 40 of 52

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC 52064(b)(7)). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with stakeholders that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template 
do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a stakeholder engagement tool.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for stakeholders and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing, but also allow stakeholders to understand why, 
and whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use 
language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse stakeholders and the 
broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and stakeholder engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard, how is the LEA using its 
budgetary resources to respond to student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its 
obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics or a set of actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from stakeholders, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 

123



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 41 of 52

Plan Summary 

Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 
 
Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the students and community. For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, 
enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information as an LEA 
wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, and any other information, what progress is the LEA 
most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific examples of how past 
increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved performance for these 
students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? Other needs may be identified 
using locally collected data including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

124



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 42 of 52

Stakeholder Engagement 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such stakeholder 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC 52064(e)(1)). Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how stakeholder engagement influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow 
stakeholders that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA engaged stakeholders and 
the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section.  

Statute and regulations specify the stakeholder groups that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. Statute requires charter schools to consult 
with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be 
shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner 
Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective stakeholder engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for 
advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for stakeholder engagement in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

125

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 43 of 52

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.” 

Describe the stakeholder engagement process used by the LEA to involve stakeholders in the development of the LCAP, including, at a 
minimum, describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required stakeholder groups as applicable to the type of LEA. 
A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with stakeholders. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to stakeholder engagement.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.” 

Describe and summarize the stakeholder feedback provided by specific stakeholders. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from stakeholders. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide stakeholders and the public clear, specific information about how the stakeholder engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the stakeholder feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
stakeholder requests within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. For the 
purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by stakeholder input can include, but are not necessarily limited 
to: 

 Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
 Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
 Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
 Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
 Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
 Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
 Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
 Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
 Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
 Determination of material differences in expenditures 

126



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 44 of 52

 Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
 Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to stakeholders what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to stakeholders and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by 
performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

 Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

 Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

 Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 

Focus Goal(s) 
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 

127



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 45 of 52

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a 
focus goal. 

Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with stakeholders, has determined to 
maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g. high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–2021 outcomes on 
some metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g. graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

128



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 46 of 52

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023-24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

  

129



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 47 of 52

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023-24) 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022–
23. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023–
24. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024–
25. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the expenditure tables. Provide a description 
of the action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be 
provided in the summary expenditure tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement 
as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an 
LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address 
the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the 
LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year 
130



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 48 of 52

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures do 
not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides stakeholders with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated 
section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improved services for its unduplicated students as compared to all students and how LEA-wide or 
schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be 
sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of stakeholders to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this 
section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year.  

When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the “Increased or Improved Services” section and enter the appropriate LCAP year. 
Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for the relevant LCAP year. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three 
years within the LCAP. 

131



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 49 of 52

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Increased Apportionment based on the enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students: Specify the estimate 
of the amount of funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated pupils for the LCAP year. 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an 
explanation of (1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how 
these actions are effective in meeting the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7% lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 

132



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 50 of 52

climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action(s)) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100% attendance rate 
will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet needs 
most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%, describe how these actions 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the 
actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, 
including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

“A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required.” 

133



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 51 of 52

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement. This 
description must address how these action(s) are expected to result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for 
unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

Expenditure Tables 
Complete the Data Entry table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other 
Expenditure Tables. All information is entered into the Data Entry table. Do not enter data into the other tables. 

The following expenditure tables are required to be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

 Table 1: Actions 

 Table 2: Total Expenditures 

 Table 3: Contributing Expenditures 

 Table 4: Annual Update Expenditures 

The Data Entry table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. 

 In the Data Entry table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

 Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

 Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

 Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

 Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All”, or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 

 Increased / Improved: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services; OR, type 
“No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

 If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 
134



2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 52 of 52

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e. districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools”. If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

 Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year”, or “2 Years”, or “6 Months”. 

 Personnel Expense: This column will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the following columns: 

o Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

o Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated. 

 LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e. base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation).  

 Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260


	MinutesOf051221
	MinutesOf052621SpecialMeeting
	TemporaryCountyCertificates
	ResolutionA060921EducationProtectionAccount
	PublicHearing-LocalControlAccountabilityPlan
	LocalControlAccountabilityPlan.pdf
	2021_LCFF_Budget_Overview_for_Parents_Kings_County_Office_of_Education_20210602
	2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021-22 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21


	2021_Local_Control_and_Accountability_Plan_LCP_Annual_Update_Kings_County_Office_of_Education_20210602 (1)
	Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Goal Analysis
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Goal Analysis
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Goal Analysis
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Goal Analysis

	Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings

	Distance Learning Program
	Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program
	Analysis of the Distance Learning Program

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss
	Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss
	Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	Analysis of School Nutrition

	Additional Actions and Plan Requirements
	Overall Analysis

	Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

	Instructions: Introduction
	Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Goal Analysis

	Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
	Annual Update
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings

	Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program
	Analysis of the Distance Learning Program

	Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss
	Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss

	Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	Analysis of School Nutrition
	Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan
	Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

	Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
	Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year Expenditure Summary
	Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Expenditure Summary


	2021_Local_Control_and_Accountability_Plan_Kings_County_Office_of_Education_20210602 (1)
	Local Control Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2021-22]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2021-22]
	Required Descriptions


	Total Expenditures Table
	Contributing Expenditures Tables
	Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22]
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Expenditure Tables




	PublicHearing-2021-22Budget



